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RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Management of STOPANSKA BANKA AD — Skopje (the “Bank”) is responsible for ensuring that the financial
statemnents are prepared for each financial year in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
("IFRS"), which give a true and fair view of the financial position and the results of the Bank for the year.

After making enquiries, the Management of the Bank has a reasonable expectation that the Bank has adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for the foresesable future. For this reason, the Management of the
Bank continues to adopt the going concem basis in preparing the financial statements.

In preparing these financial statements, the responsibilities of the Management of the Bank, include ensuring that:
» Suitable accounting policies are selected and then applied consistently;
¢ Judgments and estimates are reasonable and prudent;

* Applicable accounting standards are followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in
the financial statements; and

¢ The financial statements are prepared on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
Bank will continue in business.

Management of the Bank is responsible for keeping proper accounting records, which disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the financial position of the Bank and must ensure that the financial statements comply with
IFRS. Management of the Bank is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Bank and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Signed on behalf of STOPANSKA BANKA AD — Skopje:

j _:_Ieropn uios Mrs. Milica Chaparovska - Jovanovska
et Exeritive & /.a\ " Chief Retail Dfficer, ‘

4 \ —T
Chairntan of the Board of Directors Member of the Buard of Diréctors

Mr. Toni Stojanowski

A
Chief Rish Bl
Member of the Board of Directors
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To the Supervisory Board and Shareholders of Stopanska Banka AD Skopje

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Stopanska Banka AD Skopje ("the Bank"),
which comprise the statement of financial position as of 31 December 2019 and the statement of
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes, comprising significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s responsibility for the financlal statements

Management Is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Intemational Financlal Reporting Standards and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enabie the preparation of financlal statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's responsibiiity

Our responsibliity is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Standards on auditing applicable in the Republic of North
Macedonia (the "Standards”). The Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit svidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. in making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.

An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficlent and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

PrcewaterhouseCoopars Revizija DOO 16, 8 Sepiamvil Bivd, Hyperium Busineas Center, 2nd floor, 1000 Skople
Republic of North Macedonia, VAT No. MIK4030006022586, T: +389 2 3140 900, F: +389 2 3118 525, YANW, DWS, comy/mi
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Opinion

In our opinion, the financial stetements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of the Bank as of 31 December 2019, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Intemational Financial Reporting Standards. .

. P
%S‘ﬁ‘m :E.?:mmg:‘g s A K
& ftkov 24 infie Jovanovski
General Manager 0:"".-*'#' Ceftified Auditor
e

PricewaterhouseCoopers Revizija DOO

30 April 2020
Skopje, Republlc of North Macedonia



STOPANSKA BANKA AD - Skople

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Year Ended December 31, 2019
(In thousands of Denars)

_ Notes
Interest income
Interest expense
Net interest income 8
Fee and commission income
Fee and commission expense
Net fee and commission Income 7
Trading income, net 8
Foreign exchange gains, net 9
Cther operating income 10
(Impairment)/reversal, net 11
Personnel expenses 12
Depreciation and amortization 13
Other operating expenses 14
Proflt before tax
Income tax expense 18
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income
Profit on available-for-sale financial assets, net 31

Gains less losses on investments in Debt securities at fair value through

other comprehensive income, net of tax

Total of items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

Gains less losses on investments in equity securities at fair value through

other comprehensive income, net of tax

Service & interest (cost)/income related to defined benefits obligation 31
Total of items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or

loss

Other comprehensive Income for the year, net of tax
Total comprehensive Income for the year

Profit attributable to:
Owners of the Bank
Total comprehensive income atiributable to:
Owners of the Bank
Earnings per share 31
Basic (in Denars)
Diluted (in Denars)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

2018 2018
4,000,345 4,262,415
(571,522) (682,760)
3,428,823 3,579,655
1,262,912 1,109,890
(437 122) (335,195)
825,790 774,695
(1,853) 1,840
81,300 105,173
87,385 106,504
(100,710) 10,807
(850,387) (869,787)
(179,902) (138,613)
(711,774) (776,578)
2,588,692 2,793,898
(272,629) (295,127
2,315,763 2,498,771
__(385) 8.475
(395) 8,475
1,368 2,624
380 _ (3,325)
1.746 (701)
1,351 7774
2,317,114 2,508,545
2,315,763 2,498,771
2,317,114 2,508,545
1326 143.1
132.6 143.1

The financial statements have been approved by the management of the Bank on April 28, 2020 and accepted by

the Bank's Supervisory Board.
Signed on behalf of STOPANSKA BANKA AD — Skopje:

Mr. Diomidis Nikojetopoios P Mrs. Milica Chaparovska - dovanciska
Chief Executi icer, y Chief Retail Officer, j;%,{ rsl‘ |
Chalrpar©t the Boa™ of Directors/ Member of the Board ot {Firecisrs™"
Bty P! Direciory . \
Mr. Toni‘Gtojatiovski '-. :
Chief Risk Officer,

Member of {2 Board of Directors .

i
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/
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STOPANSKA BANKA AD - Skopje

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
At December 31, 2019
(In thousands of Denars)

31 December 31 December

Notes 2019 2018
ASSETS
Cash and balances with the central bank 16 21,847,735 19,296,827
Financlal assets at fair value through
profit and loss v 17 3,763 5,616
Securities measured at FVTOC! 18 81,425 80,059
Securities measured at amortized cost 19 8,596,403 5,789,884
Placement with, and loans to banks 20 243,367 197,089
Loans to customers 21 68,078,217 65,145,885
Other assets 22 1,555,635 732,408
Income tax recelvable 33,123 -
investment property 23 27.284 26,389
Intangible assets 24 162,525 145,164
Property and equipment 25 901,630 828,923
Total assets 101,531,007 92,250,242
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Deposlts from banks 26 258,236 159,504
Deposlis from customers 27 82,857,540 76,002,374
Loans payable 28 214,344 296,455
Other liabliities 29 1,121,772 830,122
Income tax payable - 95,126
Deferred tax llabilities 15.1 175,610 176,757
Provisions 30 65,937 69,450
Total lfabilitles 84,693,439 77,729,788
EQUITY
Share capital k| 3,511,242 3,511,242
Reserves 3 842,652 841,301
Retained eamings 12,483,674 10,167,911
Total equity 16,837,568 14,520,454
Total liabliities and equity 101,531,007 92,250,242
Commitments and contingencles 34 13,890,638 14,249,961

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financlal statements.



STOPANSKA BANKA AD - Skople

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Year Ended December 31, 2019
{in thousands of Denars)
Revaluation
Share Statutory 8pecia Retalned
caplial ressrve reserve | fund eamings Total

Balance, January 1, 2018 3,511,242 6,634 830,280 1,083 11,114,815 15,464,064
Impact of IFRS 8 - (4,480) : - {128,240) (132,720)
Balance at 1 January 2018

adjusted for IFRS 9 impact 3,511,242 2,154 830,290 1,083 10,988,575 16,331,344
Other comprehensive incoma

for the year, net of tax - 7.774 - ) ) 7.774
Profit for the year - - - - 2,498,711 2,498,771
Total comprehensive Income

for the yeer - 7,774 - - 2,498,771 2,508,545
Dividend distributlon - - - - (3,317 ,435) (3,317,435)
Balance, December 31, 2018 3,511,242 9,928 830,290 1,083 10,167,811 14,520,454
Balance, January 1, 2019 3,511,242 9,928 830,280 1,083 10,167,911 14,520,454
Other comprehensive income

for the year, et of tax - 1,351 - - - 1,351
Profit for the year - - - - 2,315,763 2,316,763
Total comprehensive Income

for the year - 1,351 - - 2,315,763 2,317,114
Dividend distribution - - . - - n
Balance, December 31, 2019 3,511,242 11,279 830,290 1,083 12,483,674 18,837,568

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



STOPANSKA BANKA AD - Skopje

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Yeoar Ended December 31, 2019
(In thousands of Denars)

Proflt before tax

Adjustments for:

Depreciation of property and equipment
Depraciation of invesiment property
Amortization of Intangible assets
Depreciation of Rol Assets

Gain on sale of property and equipment, net
Gain on sale of foreclosure assets, net
Interest income

Interest expense

Net trading Income

Impalrment losses cn financlal assets, net
Impairment lcasas on non-financial assats
Provislon for employee benefits, net
Provision for litigation, net

Interest receipts

Interest paid

Operating profit before changes In operating assets and

liablitles:

{Increase)/decrease of operating assets:
Dua from banks

Loans fo customers

Mendatory reserves and restricted deposits according NBRNM

regulations
Qther receivables

Increase/{decrease) of operating liabliitles:
Deposits from banks

Deposits from customers

Other liabllitles

Net cash flows generated from oparating activities before

Income tax
Income tax paid

Net cash flows generated from operating actlivities

2019 2018
2,588,692 2,793,808
81,230 87,882
1,105 1,972
54,910 48,650
42,857 -

- {4,052)

(35.716) (30,438)
(4,000,345) (4,262,415)
571,522 682,760
1,853 (1,840}
88,451 (37,115)
12,259 26,208
1,850 2,763
(3,851) (2,588)
4,114,785 4,120,344
(574.208) (684.741)
2,945,208 2,750,207
(46,278) (37,550)
(3,241,708) (3,122,643)
(164,580) (192,318)
(728,594) (6,432)
98,732 77,034
8,857,850 5,123,917
(9.081) (247,675)
5,713,859 4,344,630
(402,328) (219,711)
5,311,338 4,124,919



STOPANSKA BANKA AD - Skopje

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
Year Ended December 31, 2019
{In thousands of Denars)

Cash flows from Investing activities

Acquisition of property and equipment

Acquisition of intanglbie assets

Acquisition of Investment property

Investments In securities

Inflows from sale of investments in securlties

Proceeds from sale of property and aquipment

Proecesds from sale of Investment property

Dividend recelvad

Net cash flows (used iny generated from Investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of loan payables

Dividends pald

Net cash flows used in financing activities

Net Increase of cash and cash equivalents
Caeh and cash equivalents, beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

— 2019 2018
(115.163) (71,024)
(72,271) (53,009}
: (118)
(7.267,978)  (5,734,197)
4,629,050 6,094,970
28,799 8,122
- 13,827
6.965 5399
(2.790.508) 268,972
(82,111) {112,955)
. 3,309,730
(82,111) ~ (3,422,685)
2,438,624 966,206
16,000.033 15,033,827
18,438,657 16,000,033

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financlal statsments.



STOPANSKA BANKA AD - Skopje

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2019

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

STOPANSKA BANKA AD — Skopje was established as a shareholding bank on December 29, 1989, The
address of its registered office and principal place of business is St. 11 Oktomvrl 7, 1000 Skopje. The
Bank operates in the RNM with a neiwork of 65 branches (2018: 65 branches).

The Bank Is registered as a universal type of commerclal bank in accordance with the Republic of North
Macedonia Laws.

The Bank may perform the following activities:

-  accept deposits and cther repayable sources of funds,

- lend In the country, Including factoring and financing commercial transactions,

- lend abroad, Including factoring and financing commercial transactions,

- Issuance and administration of means of payment (payment cards, checks, traveler's checks, bills
of exchange),

- financial leasing,

- currency exchange operations,

-  domestic and internationa! payment operations, including purchase and sale of forelgn currengy,

- fast money transfer,

-  Iissuance of payment guarantees, backing guarantees and other forms of collateral,
lease of safe deposit boxes, depositories and depots,

- trade In instruments on the money market (bill of exchange, chacks, deposit certificates),

- trade in foreign assets, including trade In precious metals,

- ftrade In securities,

-  asset and sscurities portfollo management for clients and/or investment advising for clients,

- provides custodian services for investment and penslon funds,

-  purchase and sale, underwriting or placement of sacurities issue,

- custody of clients’ securities,

- giving advices to legal entities In relation to the structure of capital, businass strategy or other
related lssues, or providing services related to merging or acquisition of legal entities,

-  sale of insurance policies,

«  Intermediation In concluding credit and loan agreements,

- process and analyze information on the legal entities’ creditworthiness,

- economic and financlal consulting, and

- other financlal services specifled by law allowed to be performed exclusively by a bank.

The Bank Is controlled by Natlonal Bank of Greece, Incorporated In Greace, which has 94.64% {2018:
84.64% shareholding In the Bank and represents lis ultimate parent company.

The shares of the Bank are not lsted on the Regular Market on the Macadonlan Stock Exchange (MSE),
but are listed on MSE on the Market of publicly held companles with the special disclosure requiraments
and the ID quotation code is the following:

Symbol ISIN code
STB (common shares) MKSTBS101014
STBP (preference shares) MKSTBS120014

The Bank’s financlal statements for the year ended Dacember 31, 2019 have been approved by the
management of the Bank on April 29, 2020 and accepted by the Bank's Supervisory Board,



STOPANSKA BANKA AD —- Skople

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2019

2.
{a)

(b}

()

(d)

{e)

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Statement on compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Intemational Financlal Reporting
Standards as adopted by the International Accounting Standards Board (the "IASB").

The IFRS accounting policles set below have been consistently applled by the Bank to all periods
presented in these financial statements.

Basls of measurement

These financial statements have bean prepared under the historical cost convention, exceapt for fair value
through other comprehensive Income financial assets, financlal assets and financlal liabilities (Included
derivative financial instruments) held at fair value through profit or loss which have besn measured at fair
value. These financial statements have been also prepared under the going concern assumption.

Functional and reporting currency

The financlal statements are presented In Denars which is the Bank's functional currency. All financlal
Information is presented In Denars rounded to the nearest thousand.

Use of estimates and Judgments

The preparation of financial statements In conformity with IFRS requires management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are belleved to be reascnable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basls of making the judgments about carrying values of asests and liabliities that
are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may dlffer from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on en ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized In the period In which the estimate is revised If the revision affects only that
period or In the paried of the revislon and future perlods If the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Information about significant areas of estimation uncertalnty and critical estimates In appilylng accounting
policles that have the most significant effect on the amount recognized In the financlal statements are
described in Note 3.22 to the financlal statements.

A summary of the principal accounting policles applied In preparing the IFRS financlal statements are set
out within Note 3 to the financlal statements,

Standards and interpretations sffective in the current perfod

The following new amendments to the existing standards Issued by the Intemational Accounting
Standards Board are effective for current financial period:

IFRS 16 Leases (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019), IFRS 16
supersedes relovant lease guldance including IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining whether an
agreement contains a lease, SIC-15 Operating Leases - Incentives and SIC-27 Evaluating the
Substance of Transactions Involving the Legel From of a Leasa, and estabilshes principies for the
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of lease agreements, with the objective of
ensuring that lessees and lessors provide relevant information that falthfully represents those
transactions.

IFRS 16 Introduces a single on-balance sheet lease accounting model for lessees. A lessee
recagnizes a right-of-use (RoU) asset, represanting Its right to use the underlying asset and a lease
lability representing Its obligation to make lease payments. The lease Habllity Is Initlally measured at
the present value of the future lease payments, discounted using the rate Implicit In the lease or, if
this rate cannot be readlly determined, the Iessee’s Incremental borrowing rate (IBR). The RoU asset
is Initially measured at the amount of the lease liabfilty.

10



STOPANSKA BANKA AD - Skopje

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2019

2,
(e}

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Standards and interpretations effective in the current period (Continued)

Subsequently, the RoU asset Is amortised over the length of the lease, and the financial llabliity s
measured at amertised cost. The operating lease expense for the lvases accounted for under IAS
17 I8 replaced by a depreciation charge for the RolJ assst and an Interest expense from the
unwinding of the discount on the lease Habllity. The change In presentation of operating lease
expenses results in an improvement in cash flows from operating activities and a corresponding
decline In cash flows from flnancing activities.

Lessor accounting remalns similar to the current standard — l.e. lessors continue to ciassify leases
as finance or operating leases, using the same classification criteria provided by 1AS 17.

Leases in which the Bank Is a Lessor

Thers was no significant impact for the Bank’s finance leases or for the leases In which the Bank Is
leasor.

Leasos In which the Bank Is a Lessee

The Bank applled the modified retrospective approach, where the RoU asset Is set equal to the
amount of the leass lizblilty upon adopticn and did not restate the comparative information. The Bank
applied the practical expedient to grandfather the lease definliion on transition to IFRS 16 and not
reassess whether a contract Is or contains a lease. Thersfore, at the transition date {i.e. 1 January
2018}, the Bank applied IFRS 16 solely to contracts that were praviously ldentified as leases based
on |AS 17 and IFRIC 4.

The Bank has elected to take a recagnition exemption for shott-term leases and leases of low-value
ltems, for which lease payments are recognized as oparating expenses on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

The adoption of IFRS 16 on 1 January 2019, increased the Banks's Right of Use Assets and Lease
llability by Denar 110,526 thousand. The Bank's RolJ assets and lease llabllities are Included in line
items ‘properly and equipment’ and ‘other liabilitios’, respectively. Detalled disclosure for Banks's
Right of Use Assets and Lease llability the IFRS 16 impact Is presented in Note 25 and 29.

The Bank adopted the following amendment and Interoparations which did not have a material impact
on the Bank's flnancial statements:

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7- On 26 September
2019 the Intemnational Accounting Standards Board (LASB) published ‘Interest Rats Benchmark
Reform, Amendments to IFRS 8, IAS 39 and IFRS 7" (the "amendments®). This concludes phase one
of the IASB's work to raspond to the effects of Interbenk Offered Rates (IBOR) reform on financlal
reporting. The amendments provide temporary rellefs which enable hedge accounting to continue
during the period of uncartalnty before the replacement of an existing Interest rate benchmark with
an alternative nearly risk-free Interest rate (an "RFR"). ,

IFRS 4 (Amendment} Applying IFRS 8 Financlal Instruments with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts.
The amendments introduce two approaches. The amended standard will: a) glve all companies that
issue insurance contracis the option to recognise in other comprehensive Income, rather than profit
or loss, the volatllity that could arise when IFRS 9 Is applied before the new insurance contracts
standard is issued and b) give companies whose activities are predominantly connected with
Insurance an optlonal temporary exemption from applying IFRS 8 until 2021. The entities that defer
the application of IFRS 8 will continue to apply IAS 39, In June 2019 the IASB Issued an Exposure
Draft which proposes targeted amendments to IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (IFRS 17) including,
amongst other matters, a deferral of the effective date by one year (1 January 2022). This would
mean that qualifying insurers could apply both standards for the first time in reporting perlods
beginning on or after 1 January 2022.

[FRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments, The interpretation explains how to recognise
and measure deferred and current Income tax assets and liabllities where there Is uncertainty over
a tax treatment. IFRIC 23 applies to all aspects of Income tax accounting where there Is such
uncerialnty, including taxable profit or loss, the tax bases of assets and liablliles, tax losses and
credits and tax rates.

11



STOPANSKA BANKA AD - Skopje

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2019

2.
{e)

®

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Standards and Interpretations effective in the current period (Continued)

IAS 19 (Amendments) Plan Amendment, Curtaliment or Settlement, The amendments specHy
how companies determine pension expenses when changes to a defined benefit pension plan occur.

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle. The amendments sst out below
Include changes to four IFRSs.

IFRS 3 Business Combinations — the amendments clarify that a company remeasures s
previously held Interest In a joint operation when It obtains control of the business.

IFR8 11 Joint Arrangements — the amendments clarify that a company dces not rereasura s
previcusly held interest in a joint operation when It obtains Joint control of the business.

IAS 12 Income Taxes - the amendments clarify that a company accounts for all income tax
consequences of dividend payments in the same way.

IAS 23 Borrowing Costs — the amendments clarify that a company treats as part of general
borrowings any borrowing originally made to develop an asset when the asset s ready for its intended
use or sale.

IFRS 9 (Amendments) Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation. The amendments
allow companles to meaesure perticular repayabie financlal assets with so-called negative
compensation at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income if a specified
condition Is met instead of at fair value through profit or loss,

IAS 28 (Amendments) Long-Term interests In Assocliates and Joint Ventures. The amendments
clarify that companles account for long-term intereste In an associate or joint venture to which the
equity methed Is not applied, using IFRS 9.

New Standards and amendments effective after 2019

At the date of authorization of these financlal statements the fallowing new standards and amendments fo
existing standards were in issue:

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (effective for annual periods beginning on or afier 1 January 2021,
as issued by the IASB). IFRS 17 has been igsued In May 2017 and supersedes IFRS 4. in June
20189, the IASB Issued an Exposure Dreft which proposes targeted amendments to IFRS 17
including, amongst other matters, a deferral of the effective daie by one year (1 January 2022). IFRS
17 establishes principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of Insurance
contracts within the scope of this standard and Its objective is to ensure that an entity provides
relevant information that falthfully represents those contracts. The new standard sclves the
comparison problems created by IFRS 4 by requiring all insurance contracts to be accounted for In
a consistent manner. Insurance obligations will be accounted for using current values Instead of
historical cost.

Definition of a Business - Amendments to IFRS 3, (effective for annual periods beginning on 1
January 2020). The IASE issued amendments to the definliion of a business in IFRS 3 Business
Comblnations to help entlies determine whether an acquired set of activities and assets Is a business
or not. They clarify the minimum requirements for a business, remove the assessment of whether
market participants are capable of replacing any missing elements or processes and continuing to
produce outputs, add guidance to help entities assess whether an acquired process s substantive,
narrow the definitions of a business and of autputs, and Introduce an optional falr value concentration
test, The amendments must be applied tc transactions that are either business combinations or asset
acquisitions for which the acquisition date Is on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting
period beginning on or after 1 January 2020. Conseqguently, entiies do not have to revisit such
transactions that occurred in prior periods.

12



STOPANSKA BANKA AD - Skopje

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2019

2,
0

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

New Standards and amendments effective after 2019 (Continued)

Definition of Materiality - Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 (effective for annual periods
baginning on 1 January 2020). In October 2018, the IASB [ssued amendments to IAS 1
Presentation of Financial Statements and IAS 8 Aceounting Policles, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Emors to align the definltion of ‘material’ across the standards and to clarify
cortaln aspects of the definltion, The new definition states that, 'Information !s materlal if
omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected to Influence decisions that
the primary users of general-purpose financlal statements make on the basls of those financlal
statements, which provide financlal Information about a specific reporing entity.’ The
amendments clarify that materiality wili depend on the nature or magnitude of Informatlon, or
both. An entity will need to assess whether the information, elther Individually or In combination
with other Information, Is material In the context of the financlal statements.

Conceptual Framework. In March 2018, the IASB issued a revised version of its Concaptual
Framework for Financlal Reporting (the “Framework”), which becomes effective in annual
periods beginning on 1 January 2020. The Framework sats out the fundamental concepis of
financlal reporting that guide the IASB In developing IFRS Standards. The Framework
underpins existing IFRS Standards but does not override them. Preparers of financlal
statements use the Framework as a point of reference to develop accounting policies in rare
instances where a particular business fransaction Is not covered by existing IFRS Standards.
The IASB and the IFRS Interpretations Committee will begin to use the new Framework
Immediately In developing new, or amending existing, finencial reporting standards and
Interpretation,

The Bank has elected not to adopt these new standards and amendments to existing standards in
advance of thelr effective dates, The Bank is currently assessing the Impact of the adoption of these
standards and amendments to existing standards in the period of initial application.
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3.
3.1

34

3.5
(a)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Interest Income and expense

Interestincome and expense are recognized in the statement of comprehensive Income for all instruments
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method.

The effactive interest rate method is a methed of calculating the amortized cost of a financial asset or a
financlal liabllity and of allocating the Interest incomse or Interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that discounts estimated future cash paymenis or recsipts through the
expacted life of the financlal Instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period fo the net carrying mount
of the financlal asset or financial llabillty. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Bank estimates
cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financlal Instrument {for example, prepayment options)
but does not consider future credit losses. The calculation Includes all fees and commilssions paid or
received between partles to the contract that are an Integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and all other premiums or discounts.

Fee and commission Income

Fees and commissions, except the fees on approval of loans, are generally recognized on an accrual
basis when the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Bank's
performance. Other fees relating to the acquisition and origination of loans are deferred over the Iife of
the loan and amortized using the effective interest rate method.

Dividend income

Dividend Incoma Is recognized when the right to recelve payment is established for all shareholders who
participate In income distribution.

Forelgn exchange translation

Transactions dencminated In forelgn currencles have been translated into Denars et rates sat by the
Natlonal Bank of the RNM ("NBRNM") at the dates of the transactions. Assets and llabillties denominated
In forelgn currencies are translated into Denars at the balance sheet date using official rates of exchange
ruling on that date. Forelgn exchange gains or losses arising upon the translation of iransactions, and the
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currancies are credited or charged to the statement of
comprehensive income. Commitments and contingent liabilitles denominated In forelgn currencies are
translated fnto Denars by applying the official exchange rates at the balance sheet date.

Financial assets

Classification and Measurement of financlal Instruments
Classification of financial assets

The Bank uses the following measurement categories for financial assets:

. Dabt instruments at amortised cost.

. Debt Instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCH with
cumulative galns and losses reclaasified to profit and loss on derecognition.

. Equlty Instruments designated as measured at FVTOC| with gains and losses
ramaining In other comprehensive income (OCI) without recycling to profit or loss on
derecognition.

. Debt instruments, derivatives, equity instruments at fair value through the profit and
loss (FVTPL).

Except for debt instruments that are designated at Initlal recognition as at FVTPL, such assets are
classified at amortlsed cost or FVTOCI on the basis of:

- the Bank's business model for managing the financlal asset and

- the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.
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(a)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial assets (Contlnued)

Classification and Measurement of financial instruments (Continued)
Business model assessment

The business models reflect how the Bank manages lis debt financlal assets In order to generate cash
flows, This assessment is performed on the basis of scenarios that the Bank reasonably expacts fo cccur.
The assessment Is based on all relevant and objective Information that Is avallable at the time of the
business model assessment, The Bank has identified the following business models for debt financlal
assots:

. Held to collect contractual cash flows ("HTC"): The Bank's oblective is fo hold the
financial assets and coflect the contractual cash flows. All the assets in this business model give risa on
specifled dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest {"SPPT") on the principal
amount outstanding. Debt Instruments classified In this business model are measured at amortised cost,

. Held to collect contractual cash flows and sell (*HTCS"): The objective of this business
model I8 to meet everyday liquldity needs and such objective is achisved by both collecting contractual
cash flows and selling debt Instruments. Assets within this business model are not sold with the Intentlon
of short-term profit taking, howaver frequent sales may occur and such sales may be significant in value.
All the assets in this business model give rise to cash flows that are SPPI. The debt Instruments In this
business model are accounted for at FVTQCI.

. Held for trading ("HFT™): Under this business model, the Bank actively manages the
instruments in order to reellse fair value gains arising from changes In credit spreads and yieki curves,
The assets in this business modal are accounted for at FVTPL.

Contractual cash flow characteristics

The Bank assesses the characteristics of lts financlel assets' contractual cash flows at inltial recognition
In order to determine whether they are SPPI, This is referred to as the “SPP! test”. Interest amount within
a basic lending arrangement, is typically the consideration for the time value of money and the credit risk.
Interest may also Include consideration for ather basic lending risks such as liquidity and costs (e.g.
administration assaclated with holding the financlal asset for a particular period of tme), as well as a profit
margin

Measurement of financial assets
- Financlal assets measured at amortised cost

A debt financlal asset s measured at amortised cost if i Is held In a business model that has an objective
to hold financial assets to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset
result in cash fiows that pass the SPPI test.
The financial assets classlfied within this category, malnly include the following asset classes:

. Cash and balances with central banks
Sight and time deposits with banks
Securities purchased under agreements to resall
Deposits in margin accounts
Other recelvables due from banks
Loans and advances to customers
Debt securities

. Other racelvables included in line item “other assets”
Subsequent to Initial recognition, the debt financial asset is measured at amortised cost using the effactive
interest rate (“EIR") method for the allocation and recognition of interest revenue in line ftem “interest
Income” of the income statement over the relevant period. The amortised cost is the amount at which the
financlal asset is measured at Initial recognition minus any principal repayments, plus or minus the
cumulative amortisation using the EIR method of any difference between that initlal amount and the
maturity amount, adjusted for any loss aliowance. The gross camying amount Is the amortised cost of
financlal asset before adjusting for any loss allowance,
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(w)

)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financlal assets (Continued)

Classification and Measurement of financlal inatruments {Continued)
Measurement of financlal assets {Continuad)

- Debt Instruments measured at FVTOCI

A debt financial asset Is measured at FVTOCI If it Is held In a business maodel that has an objective to
hold financlal assets fo coilect contractual cash flows and sell the assets and the contractual terms of the
financial asset result In cash flows that pass the SPPI test.

After inftlal recognition, Investments In debt financlal assets are measured at fair value in the statement
of financlel position (with no deduction for sale or disposal costs) with unrealised gains and losses
reported in OCI, net of applicable Income taxes, until such Investments are derecognised (l.e. when sold
or collected). Upon derecognition, the cumulgtive gains or losses previously recognised in OCI are
reclassified from equity to “Other operating Income™ of the Income statement, as a reclassification
adjustment.

-  Equity Instruments designated at FVTOCI

After Initlal recognition, investments In equity instruments designated at FVTOGI are measured at fair
value, with no deduction for sale or disposal costs. With the exception of dividends received, the
assoclated gains and losses (including any related forsign exchange component) is recegnised in OCI,
Amounts presented In OC| are not subsequently recycled to the Income statement, instead the cumulative
gain or loss is transferred within equity from accumuilated OCI to retained eamings.

- Financlal assets and financial llabilitles measured at FVTPL

After inltlal recognition, financlal assets and financial ilablliles that are classified as at FVTPL are
measurad at falr value, with no deduction for sale or disposal costs. Gains and losses arising from falr
value remeasurement are recognised in thelr entirety In *Trading Income, net®,

Impalrment - Expacted Cradit Losses

Expected Cradit Loss (“ECL") are recognised for all financlal assets measured at amortised cost, debt
financlal assets measured at FYTOCI, finenclal guarantees and certaln loan commitments. ECL reprasent
the difference between contractual cash flows and those that the Bank expects to recelve, discounted at
the EIR. For loan commitments and other credit facilities in scope of ECL, the expected cash shortfalls
ara determined by considering expected future draw downs,

16



STOPANSKA BANKA AD - Skopje

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2019

3
3.5
(b)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financlal assets (Continued)

Impalrment - Expected Credit Losses (Continued)

Recognition of expected credit losses

At initial recognition, an impalrment allowancs is required for ECL resulting from default events that are
possible within the next 12 months (12-month ECL), weighted by the risk of a default occurring.
Instruments In this category are referred to as Instruments In Stage 1. For instruments with a remalning
maturity of less than 12 months, ECL are determined for this shorter perod.

In the event of a significant Increase In credit risk (“SICR"), an ECL allowance is required, reflecting
Iifetime cash shortfalls that would result from all possible default events over the expected life of the
financial instrument (‘Iifeime ECL"), weighted by the risk of a default occurring. Instruments In this
category are referred to as instruments In Stage 2.

Lifettme ECL are always recognised on financiel assets for which there Is objective evidence of
impairment, that |s they are considered to be In default or otherwise credit-impalred. Such Instruments
are refarred to as Instruments in Stage 3.

Purchased or originated financial assets that are credit Impalred (POCIs) are classified as credit impalred.
An instrument ls POCI if it has been purchased with a material discount to its par value that reflects the
incurred credlt losses or Is originated with & defaulted counterparty.

For POCI financial assets, the Group Bank recognises adverse changes In lifetime ECL since Inltial
reccgnition as a |oss allowance with any changes recognised in the Incoma statement. POCI are initially
recognised at falr value with interest income subsequently being recognised based on a credlt-adjustsd
EIR. POC| may also Include financlal instruments that are newly recognised following a substantial
modification and remain a separate category until maturity. Any favourable changes for POCI assets are
impalrment gain even If the resulting expected cash flows exceed the estimated cash flows on Initial
recognition.

ECL are recognised in the income statenent with a corresponding ECL allowance reported as a decrease
In the carrying value of financlal assels measured at amortised cost on the statement of financla! position.
For financlal assets measured at FVTOCI, the carrylng value is not reduced, but the ECL allowance is
recognised in OCI. For off-balance shest financial instruments, the ECL aliowance is reported as a
provision In “cther liabllities”. ECL are recognised within the income statement In *(impaiment)/reversal,
nef”.

Write-off

A write-off Is made when the Bank does not have a reasonable expectation to recover all or part of a
financlel asset. Writa-offs reduce the principal amount of a claim and are charged against previcusly
established allowances for credit loeses. Recoverles, in part or in full, of amounts previously written off
are generally credited to “credit provislons and other impalrment charges”. Write-offs and partial write-
offs ropresent derecognition or partial derecognition events.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.6 Financial llablildes
Financial liabilities are classified in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement. Financial
liabiliies are classified as deposits from banks, financial Institutions and customers, financial llabilities
through profit and loss, loans payable and other payables.
Daposits from banks and other financial Instittitfons and customers
These financial labilites are Initfally recognized at falr value net of transaction costs incumed.
Subsequently are measured at amortized cost.
Financial Habliitles through profit and loss
These financial liabilittes Include derivative financial Instruments of forelgn exchange contrects and initialty
and subsequently are measured/re-measured at fair value. These contracts do not quallfy for hedge
accounting under the specific rules of IFRS 8 and are therefore treated In the same way as derivative
instruments held-for-trading, I.e. fair value gains and losses are recognized in net-trading income.
Loans payable
Loans payable are Initially recognized at fair value net of transaction costs incurred. Subsaquent
measurement [6 at amortized cost and any difference between net proceeds and the rademption value Is
recognized In the statement of comprehensive income cover the perlod of the loan using the effective
interest rate method. The effective Interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments through the expected life of the financial liabllity.
Other
Other payables are stated at thelr nominal amounts. Preferred shares which carry a mandatory fixed
dividend are classlfied as financial liabilities and are presented In other llabllities. The dividends from
these preference shares are recognized in profit or loss.
Derecognition of financiai liabllities
The Bank derecognizes financlal liabiliies when, and only when, the Bank's obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired.

3.7 Property and equipment

Properly and equipment are recorded at cost, less accumulated depreclation and accumulated
Impalrment losses.

Expenditure incurred to replace a component of an item of property and equipment that Is accounted for
separately is capitalized, Other subsequent expenditure Is capitalized only when It increases the future
economic benefits embodied in the Item of property and equipment. All other expendituras are recognized
in the statement of comprehensive Income as an expanse as Incurred.

Depreciation |s charged at estimated rates so as to write off the cost of assets over their estimated useful
lives, using the straightine method. No depreciation Is provided on construction In progress until the
constructed assets are put Into use. The annual depreciation rates for 2019 and 2018 are as follows:

Buildings 2.5%
Furniture and equipment 10% - 25%
Right of use assets Straight-ine basis over the lease term

The gein or loss arlsing on the disposal or retirement of an ltem of property and equipment Is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognizad In
the profit and loss. The Bank annually reviewed its property and equipment for Impairment. Where the
carrying amount on an asset is greater than its estimated recoverable amount, it Is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount.
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3.
38

3.10

311

3.12

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)
Iintanglble assets

Intangible assets are asssts acquired separately and are reported at cost less accumuleted amortization
and accumulated impairment losses, Intangible assets Include:

¢  Computer software and software that was acquired apart from hardware;
s Leasehold improvements; and
s Other intanglbles,

Expendlture on software is amortized on a straight-ine basls cver the estimated useful life, which Is five
years. The leasehold improvements and other intangible assets are amortized on e straight-ine basls over
the relevent contract perlod. The Bank annually reviewed s Intangible assets and assess whether there Is
any indication for impaiment. If such Indications exist, an sstimate is performed to assess whether the
carrying amount Is recoverable. If the carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount, a write down is
made.

Impairment of tanglble and Intangible assets

The Bank's management reviews regularly the carrying amounts of the Bani's tangible and intanglble
assels, If there is any Indication that such assets have been impaired, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the Impairment loss. If the recoverable amount of
an asset s estimated to be less than Its canying value, the carrying amount of the asset |s reduced to Its
recoverable amount. An impalrment loss is recognized as an axpense of the current period. A reversal of
an Impairment loss Is recognized as Income Immediately.

Investment property

Investment praperty includes bulldings owned by the Bank with the intention of earning rentais or for
capital appreclation or both, and is initlally recorded at cost, which includes transaction costs. Tha
classification of the invastment property is based on the criteria that the property is mostly held to eam
rentals when compared to the property used by the Bank for its own needs.

Subsaguent to Initial recognition, investment property Is measured at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any accumulated Impalment losses. The depreciation of investment property is calculeted on
straight-iine basis In a way to write off the cost value of assets over thelr estimated useful lives, which
approximates the useful Iife of similar essets included In property and equipment.

Investment property is annually reviewed for impairment. If there Is any Indicatlon that such assets have
been impaired, the recovarable amount of the asset Is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
Impairment loss, If the recoverable amount of an asset Is estimated to be less than lis carrying value, the
carrying amount of the asset is reduced fo lts racoverable amount. An impalrment loss Is recognlzed as
an expense of the current perlod.

Assets acquired through foreclosure proceedings

Foreclosad assets include property and equipment acquired through foreclosure proceedings in full or
partial satisfaction of a related kan and are reportsed in other assets as non-current assets held for sale.
Initially, these asset are measured at the lower of the cost of the loan, including transaction costs (usually
the cost value of the loan stated in an enactment passed by a competent body from where the legai
grounds for acquiring of ownership arises) and the falr value less estimated cost to sell, as determined by
local certified appraisers on the date of asset foreclosure, After initial recognition, foreciceed assets are
reviewed for Impalrment at least annually and are measured at the lower of their carrying amount less
estimated costs to sell and accumulated impalrments.

) Cash and balances with the central bank

Cash and balances with the central bank include cash on hand and nostro accounts, unrestricted demand
dsposits and placements with other banks and financlal Institutions, unrestricted account balances with
the NBRNM and other financial assets such as freasury and other ellgible bills, as highly liquld assets
with maturity up to three months and insignificant changes to fair value.
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3.
3.13

3.14

3.18

3.16

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Managed funds

The Bank provides fiduclary and trust services fo legal entities and citizens, whereby it holds and manages
assets or invests funds recelved In various financlal Instruments at the direction of the customer. The
Bank receives fee Income for providing these services. Managed funds are not assets of the Bank and
are not recognized In the financlal statements. The Bank Is not exposed to any credit risk relating to such
placements, as It doss not guarantes these investments.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Bank has & present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a
past event, it is probable that the Bank will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can
be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated
fo settie the present obligation, its camying amount Is the present value of those cash flows.

Empioyment beneflts

Health, pension and social Insurance contributions from gross wages and salaties are being paid by the
Bank during the year to the national organizations at the statutory rates. Such contributions represent
defined contribution benefit plans and are recognized as an axpsnse when employaas have rendered
services entitling them to the contributions. There Is no additional liabllity to these plans.

In accordance with the statutory requirements, the coliective agresment, and the intemal rules and
regulation, the Bank Is obliged to pay to Its employees a termination lump sum upon retirement equal to
two monthly average salarles. These benefits &re considered defined pension benefit pians. The llabllity
recognized In the statement of financlal position in respect of defined benefit plans is the present value of
the defined benefit obligation at the statement of financlal position date less the fair value of plan agsets
(there are currently no plan assets recognized), together with adjustments for unrecognized actuarial
gains or losses and past service costs. The defined benefit cbligation Is calculated annually by
independent actuarles using the projected unit credit method,

Income tax

The current income tax payable Is calculated based on the local tax regulation by using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance shest date.

Deferred tax Is recognized on differences bstween the carrying amounts of assets and llabilities in the
financlal statements and the corresponding tax basis used In the computation of taxable profit and is
accountad for using the balance sheet llabliity method. Deferred tax liabllities are generally recognized
for all taxable temporary dlfferences, and deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all daductible
temporary differencas to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be utilized, Deferred tax assets and labllities are
measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liabiilty Is to be settied or
the asset realized, based on fax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the balance sheet date.

Leases {applicable before 1 January 2019)
Bank Is the lessor

Operating lease: Assets leased out under operating lease are included in the statement of financial
position as Investment property. Rental Income from investment property Is recognized In the statement
of comprehensive Income on a straight-line basis over tha term of the lease.,
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3.
3.16

3.16.1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Leases (applicabls bsfore 1 January 2019) continued

Bank is the lesses

Operating lease. Leases where a significant portion of the risk and rewards of ownership of the assets
are retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases. The total payments made under the
operating leases (net of any incentives recelved from the lessor) are charged 1o the income statement on
straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Lenses (applicable after 1 January 2019)

Bank is the lesses

The Bank applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short term
leases and leases of low-value assets for which the payments are recognized as operating expense on
straight line basis over the lease term. The Bank recognizes liabilities representing the obligation to make
lease payments and Rol) assets representing the right to use the underlying aseets.

Roll assets The Bank recognizes Rol assets at the commencement date of the |ease (L.e. the date of
the underlying assets Is avallable for use) RoU assets are measures at cost, less any accumulatsd
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remseasurement of lease liablilties. The cost of
Rol assets includes the amount of lease llabiliies recognized, initlal directs costs Incurred, restoration
costs and lease payments made before tha commencement date less any lease Incentive recelved. RoU
assats are depreciated on a siralght-fine basis over the lease term. The RolJ assets are presented In the

property and equipment.

Lease liabllitles the bank recognizes llabilities arising from a lease are Inltlally measured on a present
value basis. Lease fiabilities include the net present value of the following lsase payments:

fixed payments (Including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives recelvable;

varlable lease payment that are based on an Index or a rate;

amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residusl value guarantees;

the exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is reascnably certain to exercise that option, and
payments of panalties for ierminating the lease, If the Iease term reflects the lessee exerclsing that option.

The lease payments are discounted using the Interest rate impliclt In the lease. If that rate cannat be
determined, the lessee’s Incremental borrowing rate s used, being the rate that the iessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to cbtain an asset of similar value In a simllar economic environment

with similar terms and conditions.

Short term leases and leases of Jow-value assels The Bank has elected not to recognize RoU assets and
liabillties for short-term leases that have a lease term of 12 months of less and leases of low-value assets.
The Bank recognizes the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

Bank Is the lessor

Operating lease: Assets leased out under cperating lease are Included in the statement of financlal
position as Investment property. Rental Income from Investment property Is recognized In the statement
of comprehensive income on a stralght-line basis over the term of the leass.
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3.18

3.19

a2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner conslstent with the internai reporting provided to the chief
operating decislon-maker. The chief cperating declslon-maker Is the person or group that allocates
resources to and assesses the parformance of the operating sagments of the Bank, The Bank has
determined the Management Board as Hs chief operating decision-maker.

All transactions between business segments are conducted on an arm’s length besis, with inter-sagment
revenue and costs being ellminated. Income and expenses directly assoclated with sach segment are
Included in determining business segment performance.

Geographical areas include Income from assets that are either located or are managed In the respective
geographical area.

Offsetting

Financlal assets and llabllities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of finencial
position when, and only when there Is there Is a iegally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts
and there Is an Intention to reslize the asset and seltle the liabllity simultaneously or on a net basis,

Financial guarantee contracts

A financlal guarantee contract is a contract that requires the Issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs bacause a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the original or modified terms of a debt instrument.

A financlal guarantse contract, other than those assessed as Insurance contracts, is recognized Initially
at thelr fair value and subsequently measured at the higher of: a) the unamortized balanee of the related
fees received and deferred, and b} the best estimate of the amount required to settie the guarantee at the
reporting date.

Related parly transactions

Related parties are related to the Bank If directly, or indirectly through one or more intermedieries, the
party controls, Is controlled by, or is under commen control with, the Bank (this includes parent and fellow
subsidlariea In the NBG Group) and has en interest In the Bank that gives It significant influsnce over the
Bank, or the party is a member of the key management personnel of the Bank or its parent or is a close
member of the famlly of any Individual which is described above. A related party transaction Is a transfer
of resources, services or obligations between related parties, regardiess of whether a price is charged.
All banking transactions entered Into which relsted parties are made on substantially the same terms,
Including Interest rates and collateral, as those prevailing at the sama time for comparable transactions
with unrelated parties and do not Involve more than a normal amount of risk.

Earnings per share

Basic eamings per share (EPS) ratic is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period
atiributable to ordinary shareholders by the welighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
during the perlod excluding the average number of ordinary shares purchased by the Bank and held
treasury shares.

Diluted eamings per share ration Is computed using the same method as for basic EPS, but the
determinants are adjusted to reflect the potential dilution that could occur If convertible debt securities,
optlons, warrants or other contracts to issue ordinary shares wers converted or exercised Into ordinary
shares.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Critical accounting Judgments and estimates
The most significant areas, for which judgments, astimates and assumptions are required, are:

Falr value of financial Instruments

The fair value of the financlal Instruments that are not quoted In active markets are determined using
internal vaiuation techniques. These Includa present valus methods, models based on observable input
parameters, All valuation models are validated before they are used as & basis for financlal reporting, and
pericdically reviewed by quallfied personnel independent of the area that created the model. Wherever
possible, the Bank compares valuations derived from models with quoted prices of similar Instruments,
and with actual values when realized, In order to further validate and standardized modals. A vatlety of
factors are Incorporated into the models, including actual or estimated market prices and rates, such as
time value and volatliity, market conditions and liquidity.

The Bank applies its models consistenly from one period to the next, ensuring comparability and
continuity of valuations over time, but estimating falr value inherently Involves a significant degree of
Jjudgment. In the RNM sufficlant market experlence, stability and liquidity do not exist for the purchase
and sale of receivables and other financial assets ar llablities, for which published market prices are
presentfy not readily available.

The Management assesses Ite overall risk exposure and In Instances In which It estimates that the value
in the books may not be realized, it recognizes a provision. In the opinion of management, the reported
carrying amounts for the assets that are not quoted in an active market represent the most valld and
useful reporting valuas under the present markst conditions.

Expected Credit Loss (“ECL")

The calculation of ECL requires management to apply significant judgment and make estimates and
assumptions that Involve significant uncertainty at the time they are determined. Changes to these
estimates and assumptions can result in significant changes to the amount and timing of ECL fo be
recognised. The most signticant sources of measurement uncertainty relate to the folkowing ECL factors:

Determination of a significant Increase of credht risk (SICR)

The Bank assesses whether a SICR has occurred since initfal recognition based on qualitative and
quantitative criterla. A non-creditimpalred asset Is classified In stage 2 If It has suffered a SICR, otherwlse
it is classified In stage 1. An assessment of whether credit sk has Increased significantly since inital
recognition is performed at each reporting period by considering the change In the risk of default occurring
over the remalning Iife of the financlal instrument. The assessment compares the risk of default occuning
at the reporting date compared with that at iniflal recognition, taking Into account reasonable and
supportable Information, including information about past events, current conditions and future economic
conditicns.
The Bank assesses SICR based on three main components:

¢ aquantliiative element, |, reflecting a quantitative comparison of PD or credit rating at

the reporting date versus the respective metric at Initial recognition,

o a quelltative element, that is all Forbome Performing Exposures (FPE) and Internal
watch list for corporate obligors; and

s “Backstop® Indicators. The Bank appfies on all lending exposures the IFRS 9
presumption that a SICR has occurred when the financial asset ls more than 30 days
past due.

Model risk Inherent In the IFRS 9 models

Compliance with the IFRS 8 impairment model requires the use of a variety of models. The complexity of
the models as well as dependency to other model-based Inputs Is high therefore any changes In Inputs
and data, as well as new or revisad models, may significantly affect ECL,
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Contlnued)
Critical accounting judgments and estimates (Continued)

Forward looking Information

FLI Is Incorporated In the ECL measurement of collectively assessed ioans and debt securities threugh
the PD and LGD models. The expacted recoverles (cash fiow recoveries or liquidation of collateral) used
in the ECL calculstion of corporate lending exposures Individually assessed, takes Into account FLI based
on the Bank’s forecasts of the relevant macroeconomic factors. Each of the scenarios Is based on
Management's assumptions around future economic condiions In the form of macroeconomlc, market
and other factors. Changes in the scenarios and welghts, the relevant macroeconomic variables and the
assumptions made under those variables for the forecast horizon would have a significant effect on the
ECL.

The Bank Incorporates forward-looking information In the ECL measurement through the PD modaels. In
order to capture the FLI in the credit risk parameters models, the Bank Initlally selects potentfal drivers of
each target risk mefric that are likely to be the most important based on economic intuition, exparlence
with similar medels, and histerical data analysls. A customized variable selection algorithm Is then applied
to choose the optimal combination of macroaconomic drivers. Through widely accepted econometric
models, the Bank develops FLI for credit risk parameters models In form of three macrosconomic
scenarios using officlal sources for future macroeconomic projections (for three respective years).

More specifically, the Bank uses three macroeconomic scenarios (l.e. bassline, optimistic, pessimistic)
applying weights of 40% for baseline and 30% for optimistic and pessimistic scenario respactively.

The scenarlos are developed using officlal projections from recognized international sources {such as the
country's Central Bank, IMF, World bank efc.} along with projections by NBG Economic Research
Division. The main purposa is achieving the objective of measuring ECL in a way that reflects an unbiased
and probabliity welghted amount that is determined by evaluating a range of possible outcomes.

The macroeconomic scenarios used for incorporating FLI into the ECL measurement, as well as the
scenario weights, are approved by the Bank's Risk Management Commilties.

Further, the projections are assessed against the actual parameters on quarterly bases, and in case the
actual values vary significantly from the incorporated projections, the projections are amended and
incorporated in the PD curves.

The annual average forecasts for the period 2018-2022 for the maln macro variables used, under each
scenario are presented In the table below.

Variable _____Baseline Optimistic Pessimistic

GDP 3.8% 4.6% 25%

Gross exponses on fixed assets 8.1% 9.9% 6.1%

Personal consumption 2.9% 3.8% 1.9%

Inflation 1.8% 2.4% 0.6%

Main Interest rate 2A4% 2.0% 2.8%
_Industrial production 5.3% 9.1% 1.6%
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Taking risk Is core to the business, and the operational risks are an inevitable consequence of belng in business. The
Bank's aim Is therefore to achieve an appropriate balance between risk and retum and minimize potential adverse
effects on the Bank’s financlal performance.

The Banik's risk management policies are designed to Identlfy and analyze these rsks, to set appropriate risk limts
and controis, and to monttor the risks and adherence to limits by means of rellable and up-to-date information systems.
The Bank regularly reviews Its risk management policies and systems to reflact changes in markets, products and
emerging best practice.

The Bank's risk management organization structure ensures existsnce of clear llhes of responsibillty, efficlent
segregation of duties and prevention of conflicts of interest at all levels, including the Supervisory Board, Board of
Directors, Senior Management, as well as between the Bank and the NBG Group, Its customers and any other
stakeholders. Within the Bank, risk management activities broadly take place at the following levels:
» Strategic level encompasses risk management functions performed by the Supervisory Board. These Include
the approvel of risk and capital strategy, ascertaining the Bank's rigk definitions, proflie and appetite, as well
s, the risk reward prefile and other high-level risk related policles and Internal guldslines.

e Tactical level sncompasses risk management functions performed by the Board of Directors and the Senlor
Management. These Include the establishment of risk policles and procedure manuals for managing speclfic
risks and establishing adequate systems and controls to ensure that the overall risk and reward relatlonship
remains within acceptable levels. Generally, the risk management activities performed by the Risk Management
Divislon of the Bank, as well as, other critical support functions fall into this category

*  Operational (business line) level - It Involves management of risks at the point where they are actually created.
The relevant activities are performed by individuals who undertake risk on the organization's behalf, Risk
management &t this level Is Implemented by means of appropriate controls incorporatad Into the relevant
operational procedures and guldslines sat by management.

The most important types of risk are credit risk, liquidity risk, market risk and operational risk.

Credit risk ia the most important risk for the Bank's business defined as current or future risk on the financial result and
capltal ariging from a counter party's fallure to mest the terms of any contract with the Bank or otherwise fall to perform
as agreed. The exposure to this 1isk arises principally from retail and corporate lending activities, as well as activities
reiated to off-balance sheet financial Instruments (loan commitments, L/G and L/C).

Credit risk

Credit risk measurement, limits and mitigation policies

Initially, when approving loans and loan commilments, the authorized Credit Approval Committees assess
creditworthiness of the clients depending on the type and size of the exposure and based on defined criteria, The Bank
credit risk management, which encompesses Identification, measuremsent, monltoring and control of credlt risk, is
performed by the Risk Management Committee and Commilttee for classification of assets and provisioning for
potential losses, commitments and contingencles and it ls mainly based on reports and enalyses prepared by relevant
organization unlts of the Bank. Tha Risk Management Committee, Board of Directors and Supervisory Board are
regularly Informed of the credit risk that the Bank Is exposed to.

The Bank hasan Internal system of ciassificaion of customers  whose malnaim s determining
thelr creditworthiness and  evaluation ofthe acceptable level of credii sk in starting lending. Classification
of customers to which the Bank Is exposed Is reviewed at least annually. The Bank has Implemented a system of early
waming signals in order to timely ldentify any deterioration In the creditworthiness of the cllent and take appropriate
actlon to mitigate credit risk.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Credit risk measurement, limits and mitigation policles {Continued)

The Bank employs a range of practices to mitigate credit risk. Common practice Is accepting sultable collateral for
approved loans, The main collateral types for loans and other credit exposures are:

» Mortgages over residential properties;

« Charges over business assets such as premises, inventory and accounts receivable;
» Charges over financlal Instruments such as debt eecurities;

* Pledges over movables, such as cars, equipment and other,

The Bank monltors compliance with the legally and internally established limits and controls concentrations of credit
risk. Credti rigk limits towards different types of borrowers, industry sectors, geographic location and type of coflateral,
also limit of the exposure to Bank internal persons, and large exposures, exposura by sector of activity are set in the
Risk Strategy and further detailed in the Bank's credit risk management policles and procedures. The Bank structures
the levels of credit risk that undertakes towards domestic and foreign banks by placing limits on the amount of risk
accepted subject to at least an annual review. In addition, the exposure concentration risk by sectors and activities is
regularly monitored on the basis of set limits,

Tha loan porifolio of the Bank remains widely dispersed across differant types of borrowers, asset caiegories and
number of industries, thus preventing excessive concentration risks. For that purpose, the Bank has introduced a set
of imHs that control the exposure of the Bank towards different types of borrowers, Industry sectors, geographic
locatlon and typs of collateral,

impalrment and provisioning policles - IFRS 8

Since January 2018, the Bank applies IFRS9 standard In the impairment and provision calculation.

The Impairment requirements of IFRS 9 are based on an ECL model and replace the LIAS 39 incurred loss madel. The
new Impairment model of IFRS 8 recognlzes impalrment losses before they are realized. The guiding principle of the
ECL model is to reflect the general pattern of deterloration or improvement In the credlit quallty of financlal Instruments.

IFRS 8 requires the classification of all financlal assats into three stages, The amount of ECL recognized as a loge
allowance or provision depends on the extent of credit deterloration since Initlal recognition. Under the general
approach, there are two measurement bases:
* 12-month ECL (stage 1), which apply to all ltems as long as thers Is no slgnificant deterloration In credit fsk;
and

* LHetime ECL ("LT ECL") for stages 2 and 3, which apply when a significant Increase in cradit risk, compared to
the cradit sk at initfal recognition, has occurred on an indlvidual or collective basis.

Change in cradit quality sinca Intial recognition

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
{Initial recognition) (significant increase in credit risk {Credit-impaired assets)
since initiasl recognition)
12-month ECL LTECL LTECL
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4. FINANCJAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

4.2 Credlt risk (Continued)

422 Impaiment and provisioning policles ~ IFRS 9 (Continued)

In order to assess SICR and calcuiete ECL on a coilective basis, the Bank allocates financlal assets into groups on
the basis of shared credit risk characteristics, such that risk exposures within & group are homogeneous. The frequency
of ECL measurement on a collective baels is monthly. The Bank groups expesures If there |s sufficient Information for
the group fo be statistically credible. The characteristics used to determine groupings are outlinad balow:

Retall logns:

»  Product type (e.g. morigages, credit cards, averdraft, term loans, retall SME)
*  Origination vintage (Months on Bock at ime of assessment)
* Delinquency Bucket at time of assessment (current, 1-30 DPD, 31-80 DPD, 81 to 80 DPD, default)

Wholesale comporate loans: Industry

» Business segment (large corporates, SME, smalil banking business)
¢ Intemnal credit rating band

The ECL calculations are based on the following factors (“the ECL Factors"):

» Exposure at Default (“EAD"): This is an estimate of the exposure at a future default date, taking into account
expacted changes In the exposure after the reporting date, including repayments of principal and Intarest.

»  Credit Conversion Factor ("CCF"): The CCF converts the amount of a credit line and other off-balance sheat
amounts to an EAD amount.

*  Probablilty of Default (“PD"): Represents the likelihood of a borrower/issuer defaulting on Its financial obligation
(as per “Definition of default and creditimpaired” above), assessed on the prevalling economic conditions at the
reporting date (PIT), adjustad to take into account estimates of future economic conditions that are likely to impact
the risk of default elther over the next 12 months {12M PD) for Stage 1 financlal assets, or over tha remaining
Iifstime (lifetime PD) of the abligation, for Stage 2 and 3 financlal assets.

¢  Loss glven default (“LGD"): Represents the Bank's expeciztion of the axtent of loss on a defaulted exposure,
LGD is expressed as a percentage loss per unit of EAD.

* Discount Rate: The Implled discount factor based on the original EIR of the financial asset or an approximation
thareof.

*  Survival rate: Is the cumulative probabilliity of non-default at time i-1, further adjusted by the annual prepayment
rate, PRt.

The use of the parameters in the ECL calculation depends on the Stage the credit exposure Is in.
The scope of the exposures subject to individual assessment, is the following:

¢  Exposures classified into Stage 1 or Stage 2 & 3, imespective of thelr balance, for which an individual assessmant
is deemed necessary by the relevant Units, based on current facis and circumstances at the reperting date,

¢ Exposures In Stage 3 for which the enforcement procedure has been Initiated and collection Is expected based
on collateral liquidation, can be optionally subject to individual assessment.

The Divisions/Units responsible for conducting the individual assessment take into consideration both qualitative and
quantitative factors in order to calculate the ECL allowancs.,

Apart from the aforementioned thresholds set for determining the Indlvidually Significant Loans, additional exposures
may be Individually assessed, irrespectively of their total exposure, based on the knowledge of the Relationship
Managers and Business Units.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS {Continued)
Credit risk {Continuad)

Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or other credit enhancements

Credit risk sxposure relating to on balance sheet assets

Cash and balances with the central bank
Financial assets through profit and loss
Securities measured at FVTOCI

Securities measured at amortized cost
Placement with, and loans to banks

Loans to customers

Other receivabies (less foreclosure assets)

Credit risk exposure relating to off-balance
sheet assets/liabilities

Financial guarantees

Standby letters of credits

Commitments to extend credits

Other off-balance sheet commitments
Gross exposure

Less: Provislon for off-balance sheet items

Total credit risk exposure

In thousands of Denars
31 December 31 December
201% 2018
21,847,735 19,206,827
3,763 5,616
81,425 80,059
8,596,403 5,789,884
243,367 197,089
88,078,217 65,145,885
1,348,583 449,513
100,199,473 90,964,873
2,833,648 2,396,849
134,773 84,989
11,040,652 11,787,420
1,651 1,482
14,010,624 14,270,640
{19,986, {20,5679)
13,890,638 14,249,961
114,180,111 105,214,834

Deposits, property, cars, government bonds, pledgas over machines and other movables are accapted as collateral in

order to secure the credit exposures.

Morigages are fully secured by properly {residential and business premises) or deposits with a loan to value ratio up
fo 85%. Consumer loans In the amounts over EUR 20,000 are fully secured by property {only residentlal premisez) or

deposits with a loan to value ratio up to 70%.

Aute loans (Included in category-consumer loans) are secured by vehicles.

The corporate loans and small business lines are secured with different types of collaterals: residential morigage,
commercial premlises, cars, pledge over machines and other movables, L/Gs from first-class banks, corporete L/Gs

and personal bills of exchange taking Into consideration the quality of the collateral and the loan to value ratio,
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4, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS {Continued)
4.2 Credit riak (Continued)

424 Loans to customers

a) Loans to customers are summarized below:

ECL ECL ECL Total ECL
allowance allowance allowance allowance Total net
for Stage 1 for Stage 2 for Stage 3

(13,139} (1.588) (117,861) (132,5678) 3,925,534
(386,723)  (268,792) (1,324,548) {1,966,083) 31,883,084
(3,383) {12,608) (48,648)  (84,727) 11,156,831
(11,342)  (17.481) (47,842) (76,645) 3,865,700

Total
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 gross
December 31,2019
Cards 3724388 62920 250785 4,058,112
Consumer 28420674 2,050,984 2450268 33831127
Mortgage 9,882245 1023842 215371 11221558
ﬁ';‘ﬂ' business 5012675 608,898 120772 4,042,345
Corporate loans _13337.780 2,701,172 3,180,895 19,218,787
Total 98,876,982 7,466,025 6207032 72,372,839
Total
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 u
December 31,2018
Cards 3,851,663 32137 254,808 4,138,608
Consumer 28,315,371 1,266,640 2,303.948 31.974.968
Mortgage 8313141 810,231 274079 10,398,351
f::." business ;705037 691688 142,358 3,629,081
Corporate loans 13188660 2708536 _4,308,500 20,203,896
Total 57,464,072

—(130,864) _(154,500) _(1,767.246) (2,052,709) 17.167,088

(645.541) 5443|048! ‘3.300|135! (4.204,722| 68078217

ECL ECL ECL Total ECL
allowance allowance sallowance allowance Total net

for Stage 1 for Stage 2 for Stage 3

{18,751) (2479) (145918) (167.149) 3,971,459
(390,818)  (176,662) (1,257,554} (1,825134) 30,149,834
(6777)  (15371)  (50,583)  (72,731) 10,325.620
(12433) (18,116)  (105512) (134,081) 3,495,030

(146,104) _ (185,756) _{2666,094) (2,999,854 17,203,842

6506249 7374593 70,344,914 (573,983) (396,364) (4,228,662 !5,199,029! 65,146,885
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Totad

12 month PD
0,01% - 0,6%
0,6% - 2%
201% -5%
5,01% - 10%
10,01% -~ 20%
20,01% -38%
38,01% and
above

Total

Decombar
31,2019

12 month PD
0,01% - 0,6%
0,6% -2%
2,01% - 5%
501% - 10%
10,01% - 20%
2001%-36%

36,01% wnd
above

Total

December
31,2018

12 month PD
0,01% - 0,8%
0,6% - 2%
201%-5%
5,01% - 10%
10,01% - 20%
20,01%-38%

36,01% and
above

Total

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Credit risk {(Continued)

Loans to customers (Continued)

b) A breakdown by range of probabllity of default summarized balow:

M.12.2010 31422018 -
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
12 month Lietime Credit Total 12 month Lifetime Cradit Total
ECL ECL impaired ECL ECL Impalred
16,875,791 11,669 - 15,887,450 13,284.226 8.271 - 13,270,497
19,525,204 924,711 - 19,849,916 26,808,102 419,730 - 28,417,832
20,122,178 1,189,707 - 21,201,835 13,044,239 413,840 - 13,458,070
1,184,487 1,315,791 - 2,500,268 2,928,218 029,244 - 8,857,457
1,802,585 1,333,890 - 3,238,576 2,121,026 632,881 - 2,753,987
68,727 1,816,850 - 1,884,577 106,840 1,368,016 - 1,472,885
- 1495217 6,227,032 7,722,240 1417 1,738,187 7,374,593 8,114,197
66,678,982 7,488,025 6,227,002 72,372,939 57,464,072 5,508,249 7,374,593 70,344,914
Mairigage Commumer
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
12 menth Lifetime Credit Tatal 12 month Lifetime Credit Total
ECL ECL Impalred ECL ECL impaired
9,303,240 3,035 - 9,307,175 3,520,657 - . 3,620,657
679,005 11,260 880,274 7,284,414 2,987 - 7,287,401
- 431,488 431,438 15,218,194 169.896 - 165,388,800
- 365,019 365,019 437,178 621,848 1,068,027
- 145,409 145,408 1,696,251 852,572 2,648,824
- 5,902 5,002 83,180 871,638 934,818
- 80,920 215,371 278,281 - 641,243 2,450,269 3,001,612
9,082,245 1,023,942 215,371 11,221,558 28,420,874 2,850,984 2,450,260 33,831,127
Mortgane ; Consumer
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
12 menth Lifatime Credit Total 12 menth Lifetime Credit Total
ECL ECL Impaired ECL ECL Impalred
8,462,150 1,878 - 8,464,037 2,023,706 1,858 - 2,025,454
262,009 21,455 - 283,554 13,323,905 26,760 - 13,350,745
588,883 84,208 - 873,091 10,430,203 48,502 - 10,485,785
: 506,874 - 508,074 618,658 72,726 - 591,284
- 774 - 774 1,802,869 240,438 - 2,143,208
- 84,413 - 84,413 108,849 300,688 - 407,516
- 110,820 274,873 385,608 a 578,808 2,393,848 2,970,877
8,313,141 810,231 274,878 10,388,351 28,316,371 1,285,848 2,393,948 31,074,988
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4, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Contin ued)
4.2 Credit risk {Continued)
424 Loans to customers (Continued)
b) A breakdown by range of probability of default summarized below: {Continued})
Credit Cards Small Buslnoss
Singe 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
Dscem 12 month Lifetime Gracit Total 12 month Lifetime Credit Total
31,2019 ECL ECL Impaired ECL ECL Impaired
12 month PD
0,01%-0,6% % - - 28 1,340,868 7,724 - 1,348,502
0,8% - 2% 3,724,360 - - 3,724,360 738,574 15,373 - 764,947
201% - 5% 59,333 - 59,333 818,885 88,971 - 877,836
5,01% - 10% 4,708 - 4708 302,487 55,118 - 357,605
10,01% - 20% 18,800 - 18,800 8,334 128,738 - 135,072
20,01%- 36 % - - 5,547 154,886 - 160,543
1% and 260,786 250,785 217,078 120,772 407,750
Total 3,724,308 82,929 250,785 4,058,112 3,213,676 888,808 120,772 4,042,345
Credit Cards _Small Business
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
December 12 month Lifetime Credit Totad 12 month Litetime Cradit Total
31,2018 ECL ECL impalrad ECL ECL Impalred
12 month PD
0,01% - 0,8% 12,098 - 12,838 497,248 2,735 499,681
0,6% - 2% 3,618,244 - 3,818,244 1,048,887 24,204 1,073,181
2,01% - 5% 220,581 - 220,581 865,511 69,385 934,896
5,01% - 10% - 20 20 358,623 47,308 405,920
10,01% - 20% - 7434 7434 23,334 121,075 144,459
20,01% - 38 % - 24,883 24,883 - 147,851 - 147,851
38.01% and - 254,808 284,808 1,386 276,050 142,358 422,784
Total 3,851,883 22,137 254,808 4,138,608 2,795,087 091,886 142,358 3,629,091
Large } o SYE =
Stege 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
December 12 month Lifatime Credit Tota! 12 month Lifstime Credtt Total
31,2019 ECL ECL mpairad ECL  ECL Impaired
12 month PD
0.01% - 0,6% 1,380,426 : - 1,390,426 320,562 - - 220,582
0,6% - 2% 5,062,551 183,888 - 5,248,439 2,035,300 111,194 - 2,148,404
2,01%- 5% T10,41¢ 137443 - 856,882 3,384,700 312,776 - 2,677,476
6,01% - 10% - - - . 444,832 249,000 - 713,841
10,01% - 20% - - - 388,470 388,470
20,01% - 38 % - 175,788 . 175,788 807,528 807,528
36,01% and - - 1,260,011 1,269,011 - 515,076 1,811,824 2,426,900
Tetal 7,172,388 407,024 1,260,011 8,438,526 6,165,394 2,204,148 1,811,824 10,284,271
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4, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Conlinued)
4.2 Credit risk {(Continued)
424 Loans to customers (Continued)
b) A breakdown by range of probabllity of default summarized below: (Continued)
=  Large - SME
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Slage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
Decomber 12 month Lifetime Credit Total 12 month Lifetime Credit Total
31,2018 ECL ECL Impalrad ECL ECL Impalred
12 month PD
0,01% - 0,6% 1,786,753 - - 1,788,753 481,434 - - 481,434
0,6% - 2% 6,225,631 300,737 - 5,526,368 2,519,256 46,484 - 2,665,740
2,01% - 5% 460,615 41,896 - 502,511 469,356 171,849 841,205
5,01% - 10% 141,660 85,615 - 197,275 1,909,372 248,603 2,155,975
10,01% - 20% 20,776 33,837 - 54,613 174,007 229,402 403,409
20,01% - 36 % - 227,008 - 227,006 . 581,397 581,397
20.01% and . 2845 2,088,518 2,089,161 760,085 2,221,084 2,991,040
Total 7,635,435 861,738 2,086,516 10,363,887 6,563,425 2,044,800 2221884 9,820,200
c) Agelng enalysls of loans and advances to customers net of allowance for Impairment
Pastdue Pastdue Past due
Pastdusup Pastdue Pastdue 91-180 181-368 Pastdue over 2
to 30 day: 31-60 days 61-50 cays days days 1-2 ysars years Total
December 31,2019
Cards ' 3,774,362 18,238 2,910 8,576 17,844 28,333 75,271 3,926,534
Consumer 30,275,614 333,389 153,641 102,110 155,173 244,522 568,615 31,863,084
Mortgage 10,792,163 154,128 65,947 19,427 6,450 20,142 98,574 11,158,831
bmelbusiness 3744683 118506 50,867 9,602 24,347 1,506 7089 3,985,700
Corporate loans 15,354,749 491 816 31288 8,970 180.168 _ 528.771 592325 17,167,088
Total 63|941|571 1.116.077 313 853 148,685 363.983 824 384 _1.371.884 68|078|217
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4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

4.2
424

Credit risk (Continued)

Loans to customers (Continued)

c) Agelng analysls of loans and advances to customers net of allowance for impairment (Countinued)

Pastcdue Pastdue Past due
Pastduo up Pastdus Pastdue 91-180 181-365 Past due over 2
to30days 31-60days 61-90cays _ days __days _ 1-2years _ years Total

December 31,2018

Cards ' 3,832,912 29,658 1,771 8,639 14,682 27,924 55,873 3,971,458

Consumer 28,642,000 324,342 122,136 103,920 134,106 186,711 636,520 30,149,834

Mortgage 8,918,474 186,194 63,047 16,348 19,245 18,009 104,212 10,325,620

ﬁ:‘:;"b“"""“ 3.280,205 137,422 64,634 23872 5,686 2,117 1,204 3,495,030

Corporate loans 14 908 757 639,956 252 416 545.708 83.572 103.866 680,667 17,203 942

Total 80.6682 537 1‘317!572 504004 898l288 237.201 338717 1!487¢78 85 145 885

d) Movement in Gross carrying amount of loans and advances to customers at amortised cost
31.12.2019 31.12.2018
Btage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Stage 1 Siage 2 Stage 3
12 month Lifetime Credit Total 12 month Lifetime Credit Total

Total Loans ECL ECL Impaired ECL ECL Impaired
Balance at
beginning of 57,464,072 5,508,248 7,374,583 70,344,914 54,727,030 5,195,470 7,518,827 67,442,327
period
;,’:;:’:',:‘;",'m , (mem 3701617 - - (3,444,700) 3,444,709 ) )
;:;‘:’;“’;m s  (401460) - 401,460 . (©18,540) 913,540 .
m::’;’wm ;127041 {1,270,411) - : 1,661,274 (1,561,274 - .
mﬁr&% s . (366,634) 356,094 (681,491) 581,491 -
Tranefar from 138,140 (136,140} 87,558 (87,558) .
Stage 3 to Stage 2 - h ' /
New financisl
aceets originated 22,143,334 1213725 . 23,357,069 21,882,848 957,119 - 22,839,868
of purchased
Writs-offs . - {1,327.608) {1,327,808) . {374,613) (374,613)
Other movements
Inchuding (18,005,758)  (1.483,481) {442,118) (20,001,335  (16,348,832)  (2,055840)  (1,158086)  (19,582,768)
repayments =
Ending balance 58,678,982 7,468,925 6,227,032 72,372,030 57,464,072 5,506,249 7,374,503 70,344,014
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4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

4.2 Credit risk (Continued)

424 Loans to customers {Continued)

d) Movement In Gross carrying amount of loans and advances to customers at amortized cost (Continued)

o Mortgege Consumer

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3

12 month Lifetime Credit Total 12 menth Lifetime Credit Total

ECL ECL Impalred ECL ECL Impaired
Decamber 31,2010
Balance at
baginning of 9,313,141 810,231 274,879 10,398,351 28,316,371 1,265,849 2,393,948 31,074,968
m’mn 2 156,067 (156,067) - - (2.202,687) 2,202,687 . -
Soe T Smges  B739) 679 - (285,433) 285,433 -
Tranafer fram - .
Stage 2 1o Stage 1 103,708 (103,708) - 230,857 {230,857) -
g:::";’g“s!“m s (11,851) 11,861 . : {168,850) 168,850 .
Trand;r u:nsr;g " . 33,528 (33,529) - 87,897 {87,997 ’
New financial
asels oniginated 2,228,138 238,975 - 2467111 12,888,758 541,544 - 13,430,300
or purchased
Wrkte-offe - - - (284,078) (284,978)
Other movements
Including {1,610,070) 212,831 (46,865) (1,843,004} {10,435,900) {830,186} (42,087) (11,308,163)
repayments
Ending belance 9,982,245 1,023,942 215,371 11,221,558 28,420,874 2,950,084 2,450,269 33,831,127

Marignge Consumer

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3

12 month Lifetima Credit Total 12 month Lifetime Cradit Total

ECL ECL Impalred ECL ECL impaired
December 31,2018
Balance at
bonﬂLr:'llng of 9,035,960 219,263 312,837 9,560,260 28,968,133 625,187 2,150,828 20,733,928
pel
Transfar from
$w ': ?msmwG o  (667,108) 817,201 {39,007} {1,009,152) 846,228 - {162,914)

ransfar

Stage 1 fo Slage 3 (10,835) - 10,851 (284) (318,802) 280,140 {20,782}
m:‘;'g"s’;w , 80,660 {60,860) (10,191) 180,618 {215,536) - {34,918)
m’&%. 3 - {20,807) 18,866 {1,041) {145,884) 133,088 {12,788)
;{:’n‘:';’t‘;"'s’“m. 5 . 41,570 (45,215) (3,645) 26,115 (37,358) {1,241)
New financial
assets originated 2,381,771 86,634 2,470,405 12,142,660 275,088 - 12,417,718
or purchased
Wiite-offs - - {110,448) (110,448)
Gther movements
Including (1,517,128} (44,770) {23,2680) {1,585,158) (5.637,878) {156,519) (73,852) {9,867,157)
rapayments
Ending balanca 9,313,141 810,231 274,979 10,398,351 28,315,3M 1,265,049 2,851,400 31,932,420
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4, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

42  Credit risk (Continued)

424 Loans to customers (Continued)
d) Movement in Gross camying amount of loans and advances to customers at amortized cost (Continued)
Credit Cards ) Small Business

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3

12 month Lifetime Cradit Total 12 month Lifetime Cradit Total

ECL ECL Impalred ECL ECL impalired
December 31,2019
Balance at
::Hgi::mg of 3,851,883 32,137 264,808 4,138,808 2,795,087 831,606 142,358 3,620,091
;ﬂ:’:’ﬂ"s“:m ,  (66289) 58,263 . - (477,406) 477,408 . -
;mr::nhuo s (4.478) 4474 - (32,208) - 32,298 -
EE:';’J{%T.,. 1 18,750 (18,750) - - 237,819 (237,819)
%‘:’5’&. s (153) 153 . (50,281) 50,291
Transfer from -
Stoge 3 Io Stage 2 1304 (1,304} 48 (348)
New financial
asseis originated 211,814 21,807 - 338,721 1,542,572 91,002 1,833,574
or purchased
Write{offs - - @1.517) (41,577} - - {568,218) (58.218)
Other movemants
including {385,082) (11,778) 34,231 (372,640) (852,048) (273,444) (36,808) {1,162,102)
repayments
Ending belence 3,724,308 82,920 250,786 4,058,112 3,213,676 608,608 120,772 4,042,345

Cradit Carcin Small Business

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Stage 1 Stege 2 Stage 3

12 month Lifetime Credit Total 12 month Lifetime Credit Total

ECL ECL Impatred ECL ECL Impalred
December 31,2018
Balanca at
m:;‘d"'"‘ of 3,845,909 38,884 250,304 4138,187 2,230,285 791,838 142,589 3,104,722
Transfer from
Stage 1 to Stege 2 (27 423) 27,423 - - {401,016) 401,018 - -
Transfer from
Siaga 1 to Stage 3 (8,260) - 8,260 - (12,404) - 12,404 -
Transfer from
Siage 2 to Stege 1 22,838 (22,8386) - ) 214,612 (214,612) -
Tranafer from
Stege 2 to Stage 3 {947 947 - - (37,2712) 37,272 -
Transfer from .
Stage 3 to Stage 2 1,768 (1,788} - 3,219 (3.219) -
Now financlal
asaats originated 350,138 4,327 - 354,460 1,467,071 100,684 1,567,785
or purchased
Write-offs - (24,534) (24,634) - - (23,124) {23,134)
Other movements
including (334,413) (16,890) 23,588 (327,515) (703,611) (293,187) (23,564) (1,020,262)
repayments
Ending balance 3651663 32137 254,808 4,138,808 2,796,037 691,606 142,358 3,629,091
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4,
4.2
424

Decamber 31,2019

Balance at
baginning of
od

peri

Transfer from
Stags 1 to Stage 2
Transfer from
Stage 1 io Stage 3
Transfer from
Stage 2 to Stags 1
Transfer from
Stage 2 to Siage 3
Transfar from
Stage 3 fo Stage 2
New financlal
assete originated
or purchased
Write{offs

Other movaments
Inchuding
repayments
Ending balance

Dscember 31,2018
Balance at
beginning of

Hod

pe
Transfar from
Stage 1 to Stege 2
Transfer from
Stage 1 to Siage 3
Transfer from
Stage 2 to Stage 1
Transfer from
Stage 2 to Stage 3
Tranafer from

Stage 3 to Stage 2
New financial
Basels originated
or purchased
Wirite-ofts

Other movements
Including
repayments
Ending belance

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Loans to customers (Continuad)

d} Movement in Gross camrying amount of lpans and advances to customers at amortized cost {Contlnued)

Largp SME
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
12 month Lietime Credit Total 12 month Lietime Credit Total
ECL ECL Impaired ECL ECL Impaired
7,835,436 861,738 2,086,518 10,383,687 5,553,426 2,044,800 2,221,984 8,820,200
{115,108) 115,108 - - (914,222) 914,222 -
- - (70,520) " 70,520
231,703 (231,709) - 447,576 {447,578}
- (50,212) 50,212 - (77.577) 77,577
- - - 12,962 (12,962)
2,084,670 - - 2,084,670 3,087,386 320,297 9,407,683
- - {832,850) (632,850) (330,207) (330,267)
(2,884,306) 2,007 (235,058) (2,897,267} {1,838,251) (582,800} {115,028) (2.616,250)
7,172,308 497,024 1,269,011 8,838,431 8,165,304 2,204,148 1,911,824 10,281,368
Largs = SHE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Siage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
12 month Lifetime Credit Total 12 month Lifetime Credit Total
ECL ECL impaired ECL ECL impaired
6,774,350 1,432,805 2,756,188 10,063,422 5,881,204 2,147,313 1,807,191 8,035,708
(283,551) 283,551 " " {1,086,389) 1,088,369 - -
{484,353) 484,353 ; {80,677) - 80,677 -
572,865 (572,855) - B 444715 (444,778) - -
" {177,949) 177,849 " - {(178,532) 178,532 -
2,712,084 145,256 ) 2,857,320 2,820,160 343,140 " 3,472,300
- E {104,538) {104,536) - - {111,981) (111,961)
{1,656,839) (449,162) {1,227 418) (3,332,619) (2,454,768} (888,7165) 187,545 (3.175,928)
7,035,435 681,736 2,088,516 10,383,687 5,553,426 2,044,800 2,221,984 £,820,209
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4, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

4.2 CredH risk {Continued)

424

Loans to customers (Continued)

#) Movement in allowance for impaiment:

Dscember 31,2019
Balance at beginning of pericd

Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 2
Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 3
Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 1
Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 3
Transfer from Stage 3 to Stage 2
New financlal assets, net of
Recoveries

Write-offs
Other movements
Ending balance

December 31,2018
Balance at beginning of period

Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 2
Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 3
Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 1
Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 3
Transfer from Stage 3 to Stage 2
New financlal assets, net of
Recoveries

Write-offs
Other movements
Ending balance

Stage 1 Stage 2 Siage 3
12 - month ECL Eiime Credit Impalred Total
(573,983) (388,384) {4,228,682) (5,198,020)
89,112 (89,112) ) )
44,780 (48) (44, 734) -
(65,384) 65,384 ) )
- 42,072 (42,072)
; (88,448) 66,448
(224,503) (84,82) (289,355)
. 1,327.608 1,327,608
184437 88340 (384,814) {134,037}
| 545 51 _ (443 048 |3 308,135 (4,284,722,
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
12-monthEcL ~ Lifetime Credit Impaired Total
(852,732) (409,906} {4,124 487) (5,187,124)
45,388 (45,388) - -
33,086 - (33,086} -
(108,398) 108,396 -
- 91,068 (01,088)
- {23,588) 23,566
{233,138} (73,713) {308,851)
- - 374,505 374,605
342,832 44,296/ \378,185) (78,848}
673063, (306,384) 4228802 (5,100,020
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2019
4, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
4.2 Credit risk (Continued)
424 Loans to customers (Continued)
e) Movement In allowance for impairment: {Continued)
__Morigage = Cansumer
Stage 1 Siage 2 Stage 3 Stags 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
12 month Lifetime Credit Total 12 month Lifefime Cradit Total
ECL ECL impalred ECL ECL Impaired
Deacamber
31,2019
Balance at
baginning of ©777) {15,371) {50,583) (72,731) {380,918) (176,862) {1,257,554) (1,825,134}
petiod
T ags 2 442 (442) - ; 41,184 (41,168) i )
;‘:;f";’.‘;";"w. s 46 48) - - 13,684 {13,084) .
m«;rg;s% 1 (3,388 3,368 - - (22,881) 22,091 .
Stage 2 o Stage 3 - 2,502 (2,502) - - 15,271 {16,271} -
QES."S".TLT.,. 2 - {3,818) 3618 - (61,585) 81,505 -
New financial
aneets, net of @277 {1,221 - (1,498} {150,6389) {48,818) - (167,455}
Recoverias
Write-offs - ] - - 284,078 284,078
Other movements 6,551 2,182 818 9,502 122 687 31,208 {364.632) (210,452
Ending balance (3,353) (12,608) ~ (@B.640) {64,727} (388,72%) (256,792) (1,324,548) (1,668,083}
Mortgage o Consumar
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
12 month Lifetima Crockt Total 12 month Lifstime Credit Total
ECL ECL Impaired ECL EEL impaired
December
31,2018
Balance at
mﬂrﬂmm of (5458} {7,548) (48,564} {81,568) (375,735) (148,808) {1,118,088) (1,641,830)
pe
Transfer from
Stage 1 1o Slage 2 308 (383} - 12,078 (12,078} -
Tﬂ:"i’m@ 3 2 - (28 - 7,008 (7.008) .
;:;’;’g"s";g . {3.297) 3,207 - - (48,802) 48,902 -
m:’;r:?m 3 - 1,178 (1,173} - - 48,948 (48,9486) .
;’;;‘:’;’,:“s’?m. 2 . (8.430) 6,430 . - {15,028) 16,028 .
New financial
assais, net of {662) (824) - {1,488) (147,104) (39,703) E (188,807)
Recoverlea
Wilte-offs . - - - . 110,448 110,448
Othar movements 2,220 (4,649 {7,248) R8T 160,837 {57 804) {210,077} (107,044}
Ending balance (6,778) (15,372) (60.683) (72,731) (300,918} (176,861) {1.257553) (1,825,132
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4, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS {Continued)

42 Credit risk {Continued)

424  Loans to customers (Continued)
) Mavement in allowance for Impalrment: (Continued)
Crechit Cards Smail B usiness
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Stage 1 Stags 2 Stage 3
12 month Lifetima Cradit Total 12 menth Lifetime Credit Total
ECL ECL Impalrad ECL ECL Impaired
December
31,2019
Balance at
beglnning of {18,751} (2,479) (145,918) (167,149) (12,433) (16,118) {105,512) {134,061)
period
Transfer from
sﬂ. Tt Stage 2 1,434 {1,434) - 1,802 {1,602) -
Trangfer from
Stage 1 1o Stage 3 597 - (s87) - 263 - (263} -
;:::’;’wm . (18.281) 16,281 . 8 (4,545) 4,545 0 .
;:;':';’g‘;“m. s - N (84) . - 1668 (1.888) .
Stage 3 agasna‘ag. 2 - {s2) 42 - . (48) 48 .
New financial
assets, net of (s47) (323) - {1,270} {4,844) {1,707) {6,551)
Recoveries
Write-afts - . 41,517 4,577 - 58,218 58,218
Other movements 20,809 {13,625) {12,920) {5,7386) 8,526 {4111) 1,335 5749
Ending balance (13,139) {1,588) {117,851) {132,578) {11,342) {17,481} @7.842)  (78,645)
Credit Cards 8maii Business
Stage 1 Stage 2 Siage 3 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
12 month Lifetime Cracit Total 12 month Lifatime Credit Total
ECL ECL impalred ECL ECL impairad
December
31,2018
Balance at
bogloTlng of (41,033) 2727 {126,119) {188,879) {33,282) (42.477) (92,484) (168,253)
peri
Tranefar from
m o Stage 2 a7 (370} - 4,188 {4,198) - -
r from
Stage 1 1o Stnge 3 81 - (81) - 288 - (268) -
Stage S 1 Smage 1 {14%0) 1430 - - {12,119) 12,119 -
Transfer from
$un- 2’h Stage 3 74 (74) - - 3,397 (3,957) -
nefer fro .
a=ge o sT.ge 2 {886) 885 - - {1.223) 1,223 -
New financial
asgets, nat of {1,639} {350) - {1.880) (7.163) {1,907} {9,070}
Recaveries
Wiite-offs - - 24,534 24,534 - 23,118 23,118
Other movements 24,709 349 {45,083} 18.915) 35.666 18,170 (33,683) 20 145
Endingbslance  (18,762) (2,478) {145,818) {167,148) {12432) {16,117} (105,513) (184,082)
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4, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
4.2 Credit risk (Continued)
424 Loans to customers (Continued)
@) Movement In allowance for Impalrment: {Continued)
Large — SME
Stage 1 Stage 2 Btage 3 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
12 menth Lifetime Credit Total 12 month Lifstime Credlt Total
ECL ECL Impaired ECL ECL Impalred
Decamber
31,2019
Balanoe at
::ﬂuon:lm of (51,232 {17,802} {1,311,852) (1,380,786) (03,872) {187,854) {1,357,442) (1,818,188}
Tﬁu::ffwma 2 538 (538) - . 43,841 {43,841) .
Transfer fro
Stage 1 1o sTaoo 3 0 - - 30,210 {30,210} -
;mmzrhfmsmw. ; (10,533) 10,533 - - (7,778} 7,778 . R
Transfer from
Stage 210 Stage 3 - 302 (302) - 22,205 (22,205) .
m&r&p . - - (1,145) 1,145 -
New financial
ansots, net of {14,077) - (14,077) (53,719} {14,785) - {68,504}
Recoveries
Write-offs - - 832,658 832,858 . - 330,267 330,267
Other movemenis 36.244 {13,483) (2,322) 20428 (10,578) 84 144 (7,084} 48471
Ending balance (39,059) (21,009 (881,707) {741,775) {91,895) (133500)  (1,085,538) {1,310,934)
Large . BME
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
12 month Lifetime Credit Total 12 month Lifetime Credit Total
ECL ECL impalred BECL ECL Impalred
Dacember
31,2018
Balanca at
m:;ldnlmof {86,284) (80,217} (1,454,538) (1,621,040} (110,940} (127,132) (1,288,673} (1,524,745)
Transfer from
Staga 1 fo Stage 2 2467 (2.467) - - 26,862 (25,862) -
m&";ﬂ, s 23,812 . (23.812) . 988 - {988) .
e hage 1 (28.788) 28,788 . - {14,862) 14,882 . ;
Transfer from
Biage Z'h Stage 3 - 18,780 (18,760) - - 18,677 (18,877 -
Tranafer from . . R ) ) i} )
Stage 3 to Stage 2
New financial
assets, net of {21,829) (3,814) - (25.443) (54,841) (27.225) - (82,066)
Raccverles
Write-offs - 104,538 104,636 - - 111,881 111,881
Other movaments 59.367 20812 80,681 161.160 58 921 (21,174) {163,085) {124.318)
Ending belance {51,233) ~ (17.001) (1,311,853) (1,380,787} (93,672) (167,854) (1,357,442) (1,818,168}
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4.
4.2
4.2.4

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Cradit risk (Continued)
Loans to customers {Continued)

The falr value of collateral Is based on valuation techniques that are used for simllar assets.

The fair velue of collateral for retail portfolio is as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents or restricted accounts held in Bank
Movable property

Resldentlal property

Other real estate

Total

The fair value of collateral for corporate portfolio [s summarized below:
Cash and cash equivalents or restricted accounts held in Bank
Financial and corporate guarantees

Movable property

Real estate

Total

f) Renegotiated loans to customers

2019 2018
1,254,411 1,082,911
110,980 119,710
35,550,500 35,214,198
1,869,757 1.749 035
38.794.748 _ 38,165,854
2019 2018
1,062,100 1,424,089
7522661 6,194,196
17,115,698 18,135,531
20808928 _ 30846884
56.513.397 __56.600,700

The Bank Is renagatiating the loan to the borrower due to a diminishing of the borrower's creditworthiness,

if it has:

a. Extended the principal and Interest maturity;
b. Decreased the interest rate on the loan approved;
¢. Reduced the amount of dabt, principal or interest;

d. Made other concesslons, which place the borrower In better financlal pesition.

Upon renegotiating of the loan, the Bank performe a financial analysis of the borrower and assesses lte
capaciies to realize cash flows necessary for the repayment of the loan principal, as well as the

comesponding interest once the loan Is renegotiated.

As of 31,12.2019 the Bank has renegotlated loans at a total amount of Denar 439,524 thousand (2018:

Denar 598,750 thousand).
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4,
4.2
425

428

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS {Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Cash and balances with the central bank, inveatment In sacurities and placament with, and loans
to banks

Cash and balances with the central bank are classiied In Stage 1 Issuer of tha treasury bllls fs the Natlonal
Bank of the Republic of North Macedonla. S&P assigned to the RNM soverelgn foreign and local cumency
leng term ratings of BB+ and short term ratings of B-, with stable outlook. Accounts and deposlits with
foreign banks are placed in the banks thet have S&P bank or sovereign rating from AAA to A- in amount
of Denar 2,018,745 thousands (2018:; Denar 1,203,536 thousands) rating from BBB+ to B- In amount of
Denar 403,838 thousands (2018: Denar 455,938 thousands) and only deposits in NBG have CCC+ rating,
in amount of Dener 3,694 thousands (2018 Denar 1,106 thousands). Time depostis up to three months
are also In first class banks with S&P bank or scverelgn rating from AAA to A-,

Sacurities measured at FVOCI consists of equity securities.

Securitles measured at amortized cost, classiied as Stage 1, consists of debt securities issued by the
Government of the RNM classified es neither past due nor impaired, with S&P BB+/B- rating.

Placement with, and loans to banks, classlfied as Stage 1, In amount of Denar 234,561 thousands (2018:
Denar 188,460 thousands), has S&P bank or soversign rating from AAA to A- and the part of loans In
forelgn banks, are classified as Stage 3, In net amount of Denar 8,806 thousand (2018; Denar 8,629
thousands).

Foreclosed assets

During 2018, the Bank conducted appraisals on the total foreclosed assets portfollo In order to determine
the fair value of the assets.

in this period, the Bank sold 10 assets (2018: 16 assets) at a total value of Denar 140,917 thousand
(2018: Denar 186,353 thousand), whereas It foreclosed 7 faciilties (2018: 4 facillties) at a fotal value of
Denar 76,901 thousand (2018: Dener 18,967 thousand). The general policy of the Bank is to sell these
facilities within a period of 3 years, based on which the Bank is undertaking appropriate activities to
release it.
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STOPANSKA BANKA AD - Skopje
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2019

4,
42
427

4.3

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continuad)
Credit risk {Continued]

Concentration of risks of financlal assets with credit risk exposure (Continued)

Industry sector {Continued)

The table breaks down the Bank's main credit exposure of the off-balance sh
amounts, as summarized by the Industry sectors of the counterparties.

Industry
Agriculture, forestry and fishing
Mining and quarrying
Manufacturing
Electricity, gas, steam and air conditioning supply
Water supply; sewerage, waste management and remediation
activitfes
Construction
Wholesale and retall trade; repalir of motor vehicles and motorcycles
Transportation and storage
Accommodation and food service activities
Information and communication
Finaencial and insurance activitles
Real estate activities
Professional, sclentific and technical activities
Administrative and support service activities
Education
Human health and soclal work activities
Arts, entertalnment and recreation
Other service activities
Individuals

Total

Market risk

eet items at their carrying

In thousands of Denars
2019 2018
154,069 67,268
34,783 39,828
1,291,088 1,416,971
34,840 321,059
1,434 6,545
774,181 1,411,511
2,385,180 2,421,690
320,374 398,640
38,793 30,802
39,253 77,433
98,975 167,838
2,090 30,059
119,206 138,389
1,165,072 122,866
3,776 24,284
12,517 2,821
2,505 46,624
16,974 15,384
7.485,620 7.479 969
13.980 638 14,249 861

Market risk ls the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrurnent will fluctuate because

of changes in market prices. Market risks arise from open positions in currency,
products, all of which are exposed to market movements and changes In the |

interest rate, and equity
evel of volatllity of market

rates or pricea {such as Interest rates, credit spreads, foreign exchange rates and equity prices).
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STOPANSKA BANKA AD - Skople

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2019

4, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

4.3 Market risk {Continued)
431 Forelgn exchange risk

The Bank takes on exposure to the effects of fluctuations in the prevalling foreign currency exchange
rates on its financial positicn and cash flows. The Bank sets limits on the level of exposure by currency
and In aggregate for all currencles, which are monkored on a daily basls. The tables below summarize
Bank's exposure to foreign exchange risk as at December 31, 2019 and 2018:

In thousands of Denars
December 31, 2019
Total In
Other foreign reporting
EUR uUsb currency currency currency Total
ASSETS
Cash and balances with the
central bank 5,361,653 2,216,378 1,765,606 9,343,537 12,504,188 21,847,735
Financial assets through
profit and loss 3,783 - 3,763 - 3,763
Securities measurad at
FVToCl - - - 81,425 81,425
Securities measured at
amortized cost 3,285,808 - - 3,205806 5,300,587 8,596,403
P:I':‘:“‘ with. andloansto 4446 235888 2,180 243,367 - 243,367
Loans to customers 19,116,608 18,676 - 19,135,284 48,942,033 68,078,217
Other recelvables 4115 545 230,830 235480 1113073 1,348 563
Total assets 27786164 2472487 1998506 32257247 67942226 100,199|473
LIABILITIES
Deposits from banks 10,667 220,737 26,820 258,233 3 258,236
Deposits from customers 27,789,514 2,242848 1,732,332 31,764,895 51,092845 82,857,540
Loans payable 64,945 - - 84,845 148,396 214,244
Other llabliiles 250.878 76 1 250.753 768 466 1,019,218
Total Habllitles 28115802 2463662 _1750.162 32338626 52010713 84.349,339
Net currency gap: (329,638) 8825 239 434 (81,379) 15931513 _ 15.850.134




STOPANSKA BANKA AD - Skopje

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2019

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

43 Market risk (Continued)

431 Foralgn exchange risk (Continued)

In thousands of Denars
December 31, 2018
Total In
Other forelgn  reporting
EUR USD cumrency _ cumrency _ currency Total
ASSETS
Cash and belances with the
central bank 4,213,931 2,047,474 2,000,219 8,261,624 11,035,203 18,296,827
Flnanclal assets through
profit and loss 5,618 - 5,616 5818
Securities measured at
FVTOC 31 - - 31 80,028 80,059
Securities measured at
amortized cost 1,717,326 - 1,717,326 4,072,558 5,789,884
Placoment with, andloansto 4 630 190,187 2272 197.089 197,080
Loans to customers 20,687,885 24 527 - 20,602,412 44453473 65,145,885
Other receivables 1.872 2086 1.249 3.327 446,188 440 513
Total assets 26,611,291 2282394 2003740 30,877425 60,087,448 90,964,873
LIABILITIES
Deposlis from banks 16,3901 109,801 33,308 158,501 3 169,504
Daposits from customers 26,189,030 2,144,735 1,853,712 30,287,477 45714897 76,002,374
Loans payable 145,864 - - 145,864 150,591 296,455
Other liabllities 104,792 27 48 104 867 825,255 930,122
Total liabllitles 26 077 2254563 1987069 30697.700 468080746 77.388455
Net currency gap: 1 55214 7,831 16,871 _ 1 7_9;716 13.396.17_02_ 13,576,418
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STOPANSKA BANKA AD - Skopje
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2019

4.
43
43.2

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)
Interest rate risk

The Bank Is exposed to effects arising from movements at level of interest rates in the market that affect
its financlal position and cash flows. Taking into account the fact that the trading portfolio of the Bank Is
Inconsiderable and refers malinly to government securities, the Interest rate risk exposure is assessed
from the aspect of Banking Book. The risk of change In Interest rates in the Banking Book is the current
or possible risk for profit (net Interest Incoms) and / or capltal that arises from negative movements in
interost rates, which affect the positions In the Banking Book. The assuming of this risk is part of banking
activities and may be a significant source for profitabllity and shareholder value. Nonetheless, excessive
risk of change In interest rates may represent a significant threst to the profit and capital base of the Bank.
The Bank has established a framework for managing this risk In order to minimize the effects of negative
changes in future Interest rates by establishing and monitoring appropriate limits and utilizing techniques
to measure the expasure to risk of changes In interest rates In Banking Book.

The Bank has established a framework for managing this risk In order to minimize the effects of negative
changes in future interest rates by establishing and monitoring appropriate limits and utilizing techniques
to measure the exposure to risk of changes In interest rates in Banking Book.

The tables below summarize the Bank's Interest bearing and non-Interest bearing assats and liabilities
as of December 31, 2018 and 2018,

In thousands of Denars
December 31, 2019

Upto1 1t03 3o 12 1t02 2105 Over5  Interest Non-

month months  months years years years  bearing  Interest Total

bearing

ASSETS

Cash and balances with

the central bank 8,087,149
Financlal assets through
profit and loss
Securitiae measured at

FVTOCI

- - . . - - - 3,763
. - - - - - - 81425

- . - - - 9,087,148 11,860,586 21,847,736

3,783
81,425

Securitles measured at
amortized cost 8,880 1,281,984 4,563,543 858,038 924,351 920,312 8,557,108 99,205 8,698,403

Placement with, and 153,981 . - - - - 153,881 89,386

loans to

banks

243,387

Loans fo customers 29,153,887 2,063,907 17,850,663 0,638,024 6,522,520 203,302 65,832,173 2,245,044 88,078,217

Other recalvables

- - - - - - - 1,348,563 1,348,563

Total assets 38,303,687 5,345,081 22,514,008 10,486,062 7,746,871 1,123,704 84,530411 15,668,082 100,198,473

LIABILITIES

Deposlts from banks 268,155 - -

258,155 81

258,236

Deposlts from customers 52,428,277 4,667,345 18,452,863 5871207 1,257,342 68444 82505478 202,082 82,857,540
Loans payable 0,568 21,521 20,839 12,878 - 84,807 149,587
Other liablites - - - - - - - 1019219 1

214,344

018,219

Total liablities 62,698,000 4,887,345 18.474,364 5802048 1270221 68444 52858440 1,460,890 84,349,339

Net Interest gap: {13,302,303) (1,341,384) 4,080,712 4,804,016 6,478,650 1,065,260 1,641,071 14,208,183 15,850,134
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STOPANSKA BANKA AD - Skople
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2019

4, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS {Continued)
43 Market risk {Continued)
43.2 Interest rate risk (Continued)
In thousands of Danars
December 31, 2018
Upto1 tto3 3to12 1t02 2t08 Over5  Interest Non-
month months  months years years years bearing Ln:uut Total
aring
Caah an balanoes wih
h and balances
the central bark 8,142,613 - - - . B,742,613 10,154,214 10,206,627
Financial assets through
profit and loss . - - - - - - 5618 5816
Securitias measured at
;wom - - - - - - 80,059 80,059
acuries measured at .
'"‘“Mm ; 22,654 1,820,318 2,801,428 1,140,840 - - 5793844 (3.957) 5,789,884
Placement with, an
loans to banks 147,01 - - - - - 1470M 50,018 197,089
Loans to customers 38,244,449 2,004,913 6,868,060 8843670 6,734,602 352,864 63,148,838 1,087,247 65,146,885
Other recalvablas - - - - - - - 440513 448513
Total assots 47,556,607 3,834,232 0,763478 9,984,210 6,734,602 352864 76,232,163 12,732,710 90,964,673
LIABWLITIES
Deposits from banke 145,712 : : 145,712 13,792 159,504
Deposks from customers 46,005,560 5,088,841 10,259481 4,648,350 457,180 86,611 75,628,143 366,231 76,002,374
Loans payable 23,761 - 57,332 30,877 33,483 - 145,653 150,802 206456
Other lablfties = - - - - - - 930122 930,122
Total llsbiNtles 46,206,063 5,088,841 19,316,813 4679,327 490,863 86,611 75827408 1,481,047 77,388,455
Net intsrest gap: 1,201,634 (1,254,700} (9,547,335) 5,304,883 6,244,020 266,253 2,304,755 11,271,863 13,576,418
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STOPANSKA BANKA AD - Skopje
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2019

4,
4.4

44.1

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Liguldity risk

Liquidity risk represents a risk of Bank’s inabliity to provide sufficient monetary assets to settla its short-
term liabllkties when they come dus, i.e. a risk that the necessary liquid assets will be provided at much
higher cost.

Liquidity risk management process
The Bank’s liquidity risk management process encompasses:

= Appiication of operating standards related to the Bank's liquidity risk, Including appropriate policies,
procedures and resources for controlling and limiting liquidity risk:

* Maintenance of stock of liquid assets appropriate for the cash flow profile of the Bank which can be
readily converted Into cash without incurring undue capital losses;

= Mensurement, control and scenario testing of funding requirements, as well as access to funding
sources;

= Preparing contingency plans of the Bank for handling liquidity disruptions by means of the ability to
fund some or all activities in a timely manner and at a reasonable cost;

= Monitoring liquldity risk limits and ratios, taking into account the Bank's risk appetite and profile, as
well as the regulatory requirements for prescribed minimum level of liquidity rates.

The process of maneging liquldity and liquidity risk Is Implemented through the establishment of adequate
daily liquidity management through developing liquidity plans. The plans reflect the liquidity provided by
cash flows and liquidity needed to funding the cash outflows.

During preparation of plans and projections for liquidity on a dally, weekiy, monthly and leng-term basls,
all relevant aspects are taken in consideration - the established limits, maintaining the required currency
structure, maturity matching of assets and sources of funds and cther regulatory rules.

Monitoring of the Bank's liquidity s performed by the Treasury Division. The Treasury Division reconciles
all inflows and/or outflows In all currencles along with money orders, checks, bank transfers and account
transfars,



STOPANSKA BANKA AD - Skopje
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Dacember 31, 2019

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
44 Liquidity risk (Continued)

44.1  Liquidity risk management process (Continued)
in thousands of Denars
December 31, 2018
Upto1 1t03 3to12 1to2 2t03 Over 5

_month  months months  years years _ years Total

ASSETS
Cash and balances with the central
bank 21,847,735 . . - - - 21,847,735
Financlal aesets through profit and

loas 3,783 - . - - - 3,783
Securities measured at FVTQCI - - - - - 81,425 81,425
Securities messured at amoriized coat 58,758 1,282,317 4,558,767 858,113 922,272 918,178 8,596,403
Placemant with, and loans to banka 35 - - - . 243 332 243,367
Loans to customers 3,500,414 3,767,781 15,040,747  B,863,899 15,971,049 19,925,327 68,078,217
Other recelvables 1,348,563 - - - - - 1.348 563
Total asssta 28;!68@58 SIOSOIBGB 19|599|514 10|720|012 16I883|321 21 ITGBIZBO 1 00|18|473
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Deposits from banks 258,236 - - - - - 258,236
Deposits from customers 48,047,249 5,448,562 21,001425 7,658,683 2,551,465 150,148 82,857,540
Loans payable 9,707 - 21,621 20,838 12,878 149,306 214,344
Other llabllides 928 74 - - - . 40,878 01gn0
Total llabiiities and squity 47|243|433 s&a,sez 21 |022|948 7|879|532 2|584|343 390|523 B4 |349|339
Net liquidity gap ﬁi-'l]& 165; {3984684) (1423432 3040450 14328978 20777737  15.850.134
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STOPANSKA BANKA AD - Skopje

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2019
4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
4.4 Liquidity risk {Continued)
441  Llquidity risk management process (Continued)
In thousands of Denars
December 31, 2018
Upto1 1103 dto12 1to2 2t05 Cver 3
month = months months _ years years _ years Total
ASSETS
Cash and balances with the centrai
bank 18,298,827 - - - - 18,298,827
Flnanclal assets through profit and
loss 5,616 - - - 5616
Sacurities measured at FVTOCI - . - - - 80,059 80,059
Securities measured at amorilzed cost 25887 1,827,815 2,801,806 1,134,577 - - 6,780,854
Placement with, and loans tc banks 1,770 - - - - 186,319 187,088
Loans to customers 2017818 3472807 15,547,734 10,811,717 15220433 18,086376  ©5,145085
Other receivables 448 513 - - - - - 448513
Total assels 21797231 5,300,622 18,349,539 11,048,204 15220433 18341754 90564871
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Deposits from banks 150,504 - - - . - 159,504
Deposits from customers 38,026,760 5,867,226 21,887,167 7,833,602 2,529,337 178,262 78,002,374
Loane payable 1,504 23,761 57,332 30,8768 33,483 149,389 298,456
Other liabllitles 839.144 - - - (0978 630,122
Total Labiiities and squity 39026912 5880887 21724488 7664578 2562 620 416659 77388455
Net liquidity gap (17 776.681) _ 690.385) (33748601 4281.716 12688613 17923085 13676418

Bani’s assets and liabllitles are classified accordin
and 2018, except for loans and claims on other ¢
loan products thet have no defined maturity date (credit cards,
historical data on the collection amount In relation to the total

g to their relevant maturitles as at Dacember 31, 2019
lents whera the schedule in speclfic time Intervals for
OK loans, etc.) Is made by using the
on-balance sheet claims under these

products, Although the Inltial analysis reveals that there is no reconcilation between assets and Habilities

for the period up to one year, significant part of the Bank's
consldered as core deposite, amounts tc Denar 71,773,005 th

which helps the maturity non-reconcillation to be overcome.

44.2

deposits up to one year are steble and
ousand (2018: Denar 66,100,781 thousand)

Contractual maturity analysis for non-derivative financlal liabllities {undiscounted cash flow)

The table below presents the cash flows payable by the Bank by remalning contractual maturities of non-
darivative financial llablliies et the balance sheet date. The amounts disclosed In the table are the
contractual undiscountsd cash flows, whereas the Bank manages the inherent liquidity risk based on
expected undiscounted cash inflows.
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STOPANSKA BANKA AD - Skopje
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2019

4,
4.5

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value of financlal assets and liabllitles

Financlal assets

Cash and balances with the

central bank

Flnanclal assets through profit
and loss

Avallable-for-sale financlai
Assets

Securitles measured at FYTOCI

Securitles measured at

amortized cost

Placement with, and loans to
Banks

Loans to customers

Other recelvables
{less foreclosure assets)

Financial ilabllities
Deaposlts from banks
Deposits from customers
Loans payable

Other llabilities

In thousands of Denars
Carrying amount Falr value

December 31, December 31, Dacember 31, December 31,
2019 2018 2019 2018
21,847,735 19,296,827 21,847,735 18,298,827
3,763 5,616 3,763 5,616

81,425 80,059 81,425 80,059
8,506,403 5,789,884 8,596,403 5,789,884
243,367 197,089 243,367 197,089
68,078,217 65,145,685 68,078,217 65,145,885
1,348,563 446,513 1,348,563 449,513
__100,198.473 90,964 873 100,198 473 90.964,873
258,236 159,504 258,236 159,504
82,857,640 76,002,374 82,857,640 76,002,374
214,344 206,455 214,344 296,455
1.019.219 930.122 1.019.219 930.122
84_1-,349 33_9' 77.388 453 84 349 330 77,388 455

——

Cash and balances with the central bank

The carrying amount of Cash and balances with the ce
cash and nostro accounts representing unrestricted
which mature shortly. Fair value of treasury and other

Financial assets through profit and loss
Fair vaiue as determined by refarence to market prices equal to their carrying amount.

Avallable-for-sale finenclal assets
Thelr fair value is measured based on

Consequently, thelr falr value Is thelr carrying amount,

Placement with, and loans to banks

The majorlty of the time deposits represent ovamight deposlts. The falr velus of the ovemight deposits
and sight placements is their carrying amount, The smaller portion of the time deposits are fixed Interest
bearing deposits, which estimated fair value determined based on discounting cash flow using Interest

rates for similar placements.

Loans to customers

Loans ere net of provisions for Im
Interast rate reflecting the current
rate relates to “teaser loans”, for

ntral bank equals their fair values as they Include
demand deposlts and placements with NBRNM,
eligible bills Is based on discounted cash flows.

quoted prices or amounts derived from cash flow models.

paiment. The major part of the loans to customers is with floating

market conditions. The remaining part of the loans with fixed inferest

which the falr value is estimated based on the discounted cash flow.
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4,
45

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Falr value of financlal assets and llabilities (Continued)

Other recelvables, less foreciosure assets
Other receivables approximate thelr fair value as they will mature shortly.

Deposits from banks

The fair value of sight and time deposits from banks and other financial institutions s thelr catrylng
amount.

Financigl liabilities through profit and ioss

Fair value as determined by inputs derfved from market prices.

Deposits from customers

The falr value of the sight depasits and the deposits with floating Interest rate Is their carying amount.
The estimated fair value of the deposits with fixed Interest rate is basad on discounted cash flows using
the interest rate for simllar deposits with similar maturity.

Loans payabis (Inciuding subordinated debt)

Subordinated debt represents the major part of this positon. This loan Is with fioating Interest rate, The
remaining part relates to the loans from specific sources for which the market Interest rate cannot be
reliably determined, taking into consideration the fact that there are no simllar instruments on the market.
Other liabllities

Other liabilities approximate thelr fair value as they will mature shortly.

Fair value hlerarchy

The Bank classifies all financlal assets and llabilities at fair value, using falr value hlerarchy which reflects
the significance of inputs used In determining falr vaiue. The fair value hierarchy Includes the following
levels:

a) Level 1 - Fair value is determined directly with reference to quoted markst prices of the financial
Instruments in active markets;

b} Level 2 -Fair value Is determined using valuation techniques that inciude active markets inputs,
which can be direct, l.e. pricas, or Indirect, i.e, derived from prices;

c) Level 3- Fair value is determined using valuation techniques that include Inputs that cannot be
directly or Indirectly followed on the active markets, or are not visible.

There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 In the period.
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4, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
45 Falir value of financlal assets and llabilities {(Continued)
Fair value hierarchy (Continuec)
The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to Initial
recognition at falr value, grouped into Leveis 1 o 3 based on the degree to which fair value Is observable:
In thousands of Denars
Dscember 31, 2019
Fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial agsets
Financial assets through profit and loss 3,763 3,783 - -
Securlties measured at FVTOCI
Equlty securitles 81,425 57,018 24 407
Securities measured at amortized cost
Government bills 4,580,507 - 4,560,507
Gavernment continued coupon bond 1,679,063 - 1,679,053
Eurobonds 2 356.843 2.356.843
Total ___ B.681.591 3763 8653421 24407
In thousands of Denars
December 31, 2018
Falrvalue @ Level1 Level 2 Level 3
Financlal agsets
Financlal assets through profit and loss 5,616 5,616 - -
Securities measured at FVTOCI
Equity securlities 80,059 - 55,6852 24 407
Securities measured at amortized cost
Government bills 2,244 642 - 2,244,642 -
Government continued coupon bond 3,545,242 - 3,545,242 -
Eurobonds - - - -
Total ___ 5875559 5616 5845 536 24 407

Level 3 financlal instruments at December 31, 2019 and 2018 include avallable-for sale non-marketable
private equity investments where prices are determined by the price of the most recent Invastments,
based on which It Is not practical to quote a range of key unobservable inputs.

Reconclliation of the fair value measurement in level 3 is not presented since there was no movement

during 2019 (2018: none).

&7
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4.
48

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS {Continued)
Capltal management

The Bank's objectives when managing capital, which Is a broader concept than the ‘equily’ presented in
the balance sheet, are:

« to comply with the capital requirements set by NBRNM;

+ to safeguard the Bank's abllity to continue as a successful company providing positive financlal
results and beneflts for other stakeholders; and

* to maintain a strong capltal base te support further successful activity.

Capltal adequacy and the use of regulatory capital are monitored regularly by the Bank's management,
employing techniquea based on the directives set by the regulator, for supervisory purposes, The required
information is sent to NBRNM on a quarterly basis.

According to the Dacision on amending the Decision on the methodology on determining the capital
adequacy, applied as of March 2017, amendment Is made In the part of the structure of the reguiar capltal
{own funds) of banks,

The Bank’s regulatory cepital (own funds) |s divided into two tiers:
= Tler 1 capital: consisted of two parts, common equlty tler 1 and additional Tier 1 capltal. The common
equity tier 1 capltal s conslsting of share capital, retalned undistributed profit restricted for distribution
to sharehalders, reserves created from retalned profit, as well as accumulatad other comprehensive
income. The Bank has no additional tier 1 capltal as disposal; and

* Tler 2: consisting of cumulative prefarred shares.

The legally prescribed minimum rate for risk-welghted assefs Is: 4.5% for the common equity tler 1 capital,
6% for the tier 1 capltal and 8% for own funds.

Furthermars, in accordance with the asseasment of the whole risk profile of the Bank, NBRNM determines
additional capital of 4.0% and the Bank Is obliged %o maintain capital adequacy rate of at least 12.0%.

The Bank Is obliged additionally to maintain capltal buffers prescribed by the Law on banks, namely capital
conservation buffer of 2.5% and systemically Important banks buffer of 1.5%.

The Bank is complied with the prescribed capital adequacy ratlo of at least 16% as at 31.12.2019.

The Bank is cakuiating the capital adequacy rate in accordance with the Dacision on the methodology
for determining the capltal adequacy of NBRNM, according to which the manner Is prescribed for
calculating the capital required for banks to cover the credit risk, operational risk, market risks and the
currency risk.

The calculation of the capital required for covering the credit risk is based on the so-called standardized
approach according to Basel Il. The Bank s obliged to distribute the on-balance sheet and off-balance
sheet claims In appropriate categorias of exposure and to provide them with a risk weight depending on
the credlt quallty degree of the debtor or the claim. Capital to cover the operatlonal risk Is alse calculated
according standardized approach. The calculation of the capital for currency risk Is to the net amount of
aggregate foreign currency posltion taking into consideration the impalrment. The Bank Is not obliged to
determine and dispose of the capital required for covering the market risks.

The table below summarizes the compositions of reguletory capital and the cepital adequacy ratio of the
Bank for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2018 regarding the requirement of regulatory authority.
During thase two years, the Bank complied with all of the regulatory Imposed capital requirements,
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4,
46

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Capltal management {Continued)

Tier 1 capltal

Ordinary shares

Statutory reserves and retained earnings
Accumulated other comprehensive Income
Total quaifying Tler 1 caplital

Tier 2 capltal
Cumulative non-voting shares
Total qualifying Tier 2 capltal

Total regulatory caplital

Credit risk-weighted assets
On-balance shest

Off-balance sheet

Total credit sk-welghted assets

FX risk-weighted assets
Operational risk-welghtad assets
Risk-weighted assets

Capltal adequacy ratlo

Tier 1 capltal

Ordinary shares

Statutory reserves and retalned earnings
Ascumulated other comprehensive fncome
Total qualifying Tier 1 capital

Tler 2 capital
Cumuletive non-voting shares
Total quailfying Tier 2 capital

Total regulatory capltal

Credit risk-weighted assets
On-balance sheet

Off-balance sheset

Total credit risk-weighted assets

FX risk-weighted assets
Operational risk-welghted assets
Risk-welghtsd assets

Capltal adequacy ratio

In thousands of Denars
Dacember 31,
2019

3,511,242
8,217,164
24,562
12,752 858

65,307,401
4.732 305
70.038,706

881.585
7.944.830
78.976.121

16.26%

In thousands of Denars
December 31,

11,981,568

60,765,784
4.175.161
64840845

872,704
7.993.185
~73.607.134

16.28%
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4.
4.7
471

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis
Sensltlvity analysis (forelgn currency)

The currency risk management, performed by monitering the assets and liabllities in forelgn currencies,
is supplsmented by conducting sensttivity analysis of the Bank's forelgn currencies assets and liabilities.
Therefore, appropriate scenario {change of the exchange rates by +10% i.e. -10%, with respect to the

Denar) Is used,

In thousands of Denars

Decoember 31, 2019 Change In exchange rate

Total 10% “10%
ASSETS
Cash and balances with the ¢entral bank 21,847,735 934,354 (634,354)
Flnanclal assets through profit and loss 3,763 376 (376)
Securlties measured at FVTOCI 81,425 - -
Securities measured at amortized cost 8,586,403 329,581 (329,581)
Placement with, and loans to banks 243,367 24,337 (24,337}
Loans to customers 88,078,217 1,913,528 (1,913,528)
Other receivables 1,348,563 23,549 123,549)
Total assets 100,189,473 3,225,725 (3,225,725
LIABILITIES
Deposits from banks 258,236 25,823 {25,823)
Deposits from ¢ustomers 82,857,540 3,176,470 (3.176,470)
Loans payable 214,344 8,495 {6,495)
Cther liabilitles 1,018,219 25,075 i25,075)
Total liabllitles 84,349,339 3,233,883 (3,233,863
Net currency gap: 16,850,134 (8,138) 8,138
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NOTES TO THE FINANGCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2019

4, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
4,7 Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

4.7.1  Sensitivity analysis (forelgn currency) {Continued)

In thousands of Denars

December 31, 2018 Change In exchange rate
Total +10% -10%
ASSETS
Cash and balances with the central bank 19,296,827 826,162 {826,162)
Financial assets through profit and loss 5,618 562 (562)
Securities measured at FVTOCI 80,059 3 {3)
Securities measured at amortized cost 5,789,884 171,733 (171,733)
Placement with, and loans to banks 187,089 16,708 {18,709)
Loans to customers 65,145,885 2,089,241 (2,089,241)
Cther recelvables 449513 333 {333)
Total assets 90,964.873 3.087.743 (3,087,743)
LIABILITIES
Deposits from banks 158,504 15,950 {15,950)
Deposlts from customers 76,002,374 3,028,748 (3,028,748)
Loans payable 296,455 14,568 (14,586)
Cther liabllities 930.122 10.487 {10.487)
Total llabliitles 77.388.455 3.089.771 (3,069,771)
Net currency gap: 13.576.418 17 972 {17,972)

At Dacember 31, 2018, if Denar had weakened 10% against the EUR {and all other currencies) with all
other variabies held constant, the profit for the year and net equity would have been Denar 8,138 thousand
lower (2018: Denar 17,972 thousand). Conversely, f the Denar had strengthened 10% against the EUR

(and all other currencles) with all other variables held constan
woulld have been Denar 8,138 thousand higher {2018: Denar

t, the profit for the year and the net equity
17,972 thousand),
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4, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS {Continued)
4.7 Sensitivity analysis (Continued)
4.7.2 Sensitivity analysis (Interest rates)

In thousands of Denars
December 31, 2019
IR change IR change
Total + 200 bp =200 bp
ASSETS
Cash and balances with the central bank 21,847,735 199,743 (199,743}
Financlal asssts through profit and loss 3,763 - -
Securifles measured at FYTOCI 81,425 - -
Securities measured at amortized cost 8,586,403 171,142 (171,142)
Placement with, and loans to banks 243,367 3,080 (3,080)
Loans to customers 68,078,217 1,316,643 (1,316,643}
Other recelvables 1,348,563 - -
Total assets 100,198,473 ___ 1,650,608 (1,680,608)
LIABILITIES
Deposits from banks 258,236 5,163 {5,163)
Deposits from customers 82,857,540 1,651,310 (1,651,310)
Loans payable 214,344 1,286 {1,298)
Other llabllities 1,019,219 - -
Total llabllitles 84,349,338 1,657,769 (1,657,769,
L T

Net Interest gap: 15,850,134 32,839 132,838)

62



STOPANSKA BANKA AD - Skopje

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2019

4, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continuad)

4.7 Sensltivity analysls (Continued)

4.1.2  Senslitivity analysis (Interest rates) {Continued)
In thousands of Denars
Decsmber 31, 2018
IR changs IR change
Total + 200 bp - 200 bp

ASSETS
Cash and balances with the central bank 19,296,827 182,852 {182,852)
Finahoial assets through profit and loss 5616 - .
Securitles measured at FVTOC| 80,059 - -
Securities measured at amortized cost 5,789,884 115,877 (115,877)
Placement with, and loans to banks 197,089 2,841 (2,941)
Loans to customers 65,145,885 1,262,973 (1,.262,973)
Other recelvables 449,513 - -
Total assets ~ 90,964,873 1,564,643 (1,564,643)
LIABILITIES
Deposits from banks 159,504 2,914 (2,914}
Deposits from customers 76,002,374 1,512,723 {1.512,723)
Loans payable 296,455 291 {2,911)
Cther liabilities 830,122 - d
Total liabllities ___77,388455 1,518,546 (1,518,548
Net Interest gap: 13,576,418 486,095 (46,085)

As a part of Interest rate risk management, the Bank analyzes the sensltivity of the balance sheet items.
The sensitivity analysis Is performed taking into account interest bearing assets and liabilitles. Hencs, It
was tested what would happen, if intarest rates decreased/Increased by 200 b.p.

If interest rates had been 200 bp higher with all other variables held constant, taking into account the
balances of assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2019, profit for the year would have been Denar
32,839 thousand (2018: 46,095 Denar thousand higher) higher. Conversely, if the Interest rates had besn
200 b.p lower with all other varlables held constant, profit for the year would have been Denar 32,839
thousand (2018: Denar 46,095 thousand lower} lower. Such an effect arlses dus to higher sensitivity of
assets compared to the sensttivity of liabliities when experiencing e change of the interest rates.
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SEGMENT REPORTING

The Bank manages its business through the following business segments:

Reteil banking

Retall banking Includes all Individual customers to whom the Bank, through extended network of
brenches, offers various types of loan, deposlit as well as wide range of other traditional services and

products.
Corporaie banking

Corporate includes lending to all large, medium-sized and small companles. The Bank offers its corporate
customers a wide range of products and services, deposit accounts, loans, foreign exchange and trade

service activities.
Investment banking

Investment banking includes safekeeping and administration of financial instruments for cllents, including
custodianship and related services and own portfollo management bonds investment portfolio (avallable
for sale and held o maturity)

Other

This segment includes all other insignificant operating activities.

Unallocated

The segment unallocated Include accrued revenue from activities that cannot be readily mapped Into a
particular business line such as commissions, income derived from insurance or income from
extraordinary or non-regular items.

Operating segments

Net Interest income

Net fes and commission
income

Net trading Income
Other operating Income
Total iIncome

Profit before tax
Income tax expense
Net profit for the year

Total asssts
Total linbliides

impalment of financial assets,
net

impalment of non-nanclal
assets

Depreciation and amortization
Property and equipment
purchases

Othear expenaas

Retall
banking

840,308
486,241

139
1,466,079

1,113,082

46,163,330
63,561,417

328,928

(54,706)
(881,925)

Corporate  Investment
banking banking Other
2,522,688 65,807 {130)
330,368 181 .
- {1,853) S
2335 6.077 __ 30,833
2,864,391 70272 30,703
1,408,688 68,831 (1,381)
46,660,181 8,698,406 .
20,933,418 2,986 -
(383,854) (1441)  (32,084)
(12,259) - -
(172,376) - -
{26,128) - -
{880,216) - -

In thousands of Denars

Year ended Decomber
31,2019

Unallocatad Total

- 3,428,823
- 825,790

- {1,853)
- 178,685

- 4,431,445
{626) 2,588,602
(272,829)

2,315,763

- 101,531,007

176,818 84,603,430

{88,451)

(12,259)
(528)  (179,802)
(816) (81,649)

(1,562,141)
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5. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

5.1 Operating segments (Continued)
In thousands of Denars
Year ended December
M, 2018
Retall Corporate  Investment
banking _banking banking Other  Unaliocated Total
Net interest Income 800472 2,672,656 106,527 - - 3,579,855
Net fee and commiasion
income 411,752 362,942 1 - - 774,695
Net trading Income - - 1,840 - - 1,840
Cther operating income _ 132351 36.648 5408 37270 - 211.677
1,344,575 3,072,246 113,876 37,270 - 4,567,967
Total income
Profit before tax 1,013,448 1,614,810 113,876 52,472 (808) _ 2,793,888
Income tax expense 285,12
Net profit for the year 2,498,771
Total assets 42,138,235 44,233,581 5,878,426 - - 92,250,242
Total llabllities 60,118,191 17,434,773 2,059 . 178,765 77,729,788
Impairment of financlal assets,
net 370,045  (349,032) - 15,202 - 37.115
Impalrment of non-financlal
asgels (26,208) - - (26,208)
Deprecleticn and amortization {137,831) - - (782)  (138,813)
Property and equipment
purchases (47,588) (22,728) - . (710) {71,024)
(944,265) (1,646,363)
Other expenses (702,072) - -
52 Geographical areas
In thousands of Denars
Descember 31,2018
OECD
countries
{less EU Other and
EU Europs - OECD Unalo-
RNM _ countries _ other  countries) cated Total
Total Incoms, net 4,082,012 257,621 1,122 80,690 - 4,431,445
Total assats 95,854,629 4,232,344 18,431 1,325,603 - 101,531,007
in thousands of Denars
December 31,2018
OECD
countries
(lens EU Other and
EU Europa- OECD Unalo-
RNM countries  other  countries]  cated Total
Total Income, net 4,258,983 164,745 2214 142,045 - 4,587,967
Total asssts 89,015,201 1,161,584 31,820 2,041,618 - 82,250,242
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INTEREST INCOME AND EXPENSE
Interest income and expense analyzed by category of financial instruments Is as follows:

In thousands of Denars
Year snded December 31,

2019 2018
Interest Income calculated using the effective Interest method:
Cash and cash equivalents 88,410 147,482
Placement with, and loans o banks 64,716 52,104
Loans to customers 3,774,747 3,948,490
Investment securities 65,867 107,807
Other receivables 6.605 6,532
4,000,345 4,262,415
Interest expense:
Deposits from banks and financial Instifutions 3,383 189
Deposits from customers 561,315 676,414
Loans payable 3,241 4,110
Other liabillties 3.603 2,047
571,622 682 760
Net Interest Income 3,428 823 3,579,655
The sector analysls of Interest income and expense Is as follows:
In thousands of Denars
Year ended Year ended
__ December 31, 2019 Decomber 31, 2018
income Expense Income Expense
Enterprisas 728,282 64,531 774,233 64,196
State 65,910 2,204 105,650 2,239
Not-for-profit Institutions 349 1,889 269 2,143
Banks 52,405 1,170 54,635 2,008
Other non-banking financial enfitles 106,441 37,575 155,023 63,222
Housshelds 3,046,918 457,478 3,172,578 543,739
Non-residents 80 6,585 27 15.123
4000345 571,522 4,262 415 682,760
Net Interest Income 3428823 3,579,655
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7. FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME AND EXPENSE

Fee and commisslon income and expense is analyzed by financial activity as follows:

In thousands of Denars
Year ended Year onded
December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018
Income nee Income Expense
Loans provided 94,564 - 102,757 -
Domestic paymant operations 219,417 73,115 195,345 72,142
Forelgn payment operations 213,879 2g,297 195,308 26,511
Letters of cradit and guaranties 38,418 - 40,169 -
Brokerage 2,548 323 3,608 449
Assets administering a77 - 535 -
Credit cards 514,078 327,754 434,236 229,437
Consumer cradit 28,843 - 30,161 -
Mortgage credit - 34 B 27
Depcsits 18,038 - 1,185 -
Safe box 8,041 - 9,084 -
Third party collection 2,576 - 3,409 -
Malntenance feas for fransaction
accounts 84,037 - 79,983 -
Selling fees on Insurance
policles 27,000 - 1,808 -
Other 9,900 8.589 12,201 8.629
1,262,812 437,122 1,109,880 335,195
Net fee and commissionincome 825780 774685
The sector analysis of fee and commission income and expense is as follows:
In thousands of Denars
Yeur ended Year ended
December 31, 2018 December 31, 2018
Income Expanse Inecome Expsnse
Enterprises 501,620 53,621 476,831 8,160
State 4105 - 3,711 -
Not-for-profit
Institutions 140 - 92 -
Banka 30,173 205,872 27,825 75,957
Cther non-
banking
financial
antities . 24,381 - 23,614
Households 702,017 - 576,494 -
Non-residents 24 957 153,348 25137 229 484
1,262 912 437122 1,109,890 335,195
Net fee and
commission
Income 825.790 774 695



STOPANSKA BANKA AD - Skopje
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2018

8. TRADING INCOME, NET

Financial asssts through profif and loss:
Net gain on sales and fair valuation of equity securities

9. FOREIGN EXCHANGE GAINS, NET

Realized exchange gains, net
Unrealized exchange losses, net

10. OTHER OPERATING INCOME

Eary withdrawal of deposlts and operations with non-residents
Gain on sale of property and equipment and foreclosed assets
Court claims collactions

Dividend from equity securities designated at FVTOCI

Income from madiation at morigage insurance

Rental Income

income from collected damage from insurance companies
Other

In thousands of Denars
Year ended December 31,
2019 2018
{1,853} 1,840
{1,853) 1,840
In thousands of Denars
Year snded December 31,
2019 2018
87,362 104,205
3.938 968

91.300 105.173

In thousands of Denars
Year ended Decamber 31,
2019 2018
17,355 18,620
35,868 34,489
9,65% 15,215
6,965 5,399
250 1,559
1,874 2427
776 2902
14,637 27.193
87,385 106.504




STOPANSKA BANKA AD —~ Skopje
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2019

11.

IMPAIRMENT REVERSAL, NET
in thousands of Dsnars
Year ended December 31,
2019 2018
(Impalrment)/Reversal of impalrment loss on financial asssts, net {88,451) 37,115
Impairment loss on non-financlal assets {12,258} 126.208)
(100,710) 10.907
Impairment/Reversal of impalrment loss on financlal assels, net
in thousands of Denars
December 31,2019 == December 31, 2018
Charge _ Release Net Charge  Release Net
Cash and balances with
the central bank {Note 18} 3 (83) (90} - {42) (42)
Placement with, and loans
to banks (Note 20) 458 (308) 149 1,040 (7,895) (6,855)
Loans to customers
{Note 21) 900,854 (828,478) 81,376 1,330,351  (1,330,714) (363)
Other assets (Note 22) 8,071 {1,996) 6,075 28,251 (25,013) 3,238
Securities measured at
amortized cost (Note 19) 5,373 (3,839) 1,534 938 - 938
Off-balance sheet Items
{Note 30) 928 (1,621} 583 1.103 (35,132) _ (34,029)

924687 (838,238) _ 88,451 1.361.681 (1,398 706) __ (37,115)

Accrued Intereat income on impaired financlal assets as at December 31, 2019 amount to nil (2018: Denar
nil).

impalment ioss on non-financial asset
In thousands of Denars

Year ended December 31,

2019 2018

Investment property (Note 23) - 3,997
Property and equipment (Note 25) 208 3,928
Assets acquired through foreclosure procedures (Note 22a) 11.961 18.282
12,259 26.208




STOPANSKA BANKA AD — Skopje
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2019

12,

13.

14.

PERSONNEL EXPENSES

Wages and salaries

Social security cost

Other staff costs

Penslon costs based on defined benefit plans, net

Average number of employees during the period
Number of parmanent employees at the end of the year

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION

Depreciation of property and eguipment (Note 25)
Amortization of intanglble assets (Note 24)
Depreciation of invesiment proparty (Note 23)
Depreclation of RoU Assets (Note 25)

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Insurance premiums for deposits

Other service costs

Adminletrative and marketing costs

Materials

Telecommunication and postage costs

Service fea (Legal fees, audit fens)

Collection costs

Malntenance and other related expenses

Credlt cards costs

Other expenses

Expense for Variable lease payments not In Leass Liabliity
Insurance premiums for property and emp

Operating expense relating to Short-term & low value leases
Travel expenses

Other taxes and contributions

Court claims

Rent

In thousands of Denars
Yeoar ended Decomber 31,
2019 2018
481,488 471,742
238,003 232,781
128,545 185,825
2.331 (681)
850.367 869,787
1,026 1,028
1,021 1,027

In thousands of Denars
Year snded December 31,
2019 2018
81,230 87,881
54.910 48,660
1,106 1,972

42 857 -
179,802 138.613

In thousands of Denars

Year ended December 31,
2019 2018
151,743 142,267
123,638 84,016
119,859 121,568
62,802 66,298
59,800 61,818
48,690 55,478
41,628 44,083
41,111 82,210
31,633

21,268 12,124
11,733 -
11,588 13,0684
8,257 -
6,370 56814
2,125 1,628
1,269 1,882

- 52,694
711.774 776,576
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STOPANSKA BANKA AD - Skopje
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2019

18.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE
The major components of income taxes In the statement of comprehensive Income are as follows:

In thousands of Denars

Year ended December 31,

2019 2018

Current income tax expense 274,076 321,735
Deferred income tax expense (11470 (26,608)

272.928 295 127

The total charge for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:

In thousands of Denars
Year ended December 31,
2019 2018
Profit before tax 2588692 2793888
Income tax at the statutory Income tax rate of 10% 258,869 278,390
Tax on expenses not allowed for tax purpeses 10,240 15,467
Other - 3,820 270
At effective rate of 10.54% (2018: 10.56%) 272929 295127

In accordance with the Income Tax Law which is in appliance for the fiscal 2019 and 2018, basis for taxation
represents the reallzed gross profit (difference between the total income and expenditures) Increased by
certain coats that are not subject to taxation, or decreased by certain income, investments and similar which
are not subject to faxation,

In accordance with the previous Law on income tax,the accumulated undisiributed profit for the years from
2009 to 2013 shall be subject to taxatlon at tha moment of its distribution.
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STOPANSKA BANKA AD - Skopje
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2019

15.1 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

Recognized deferred income tax (assets)/liabillties are attributable to the following items

In thousands of Denars
31 December 2019 31 December 2018
Deferred Deferred Deferrad  Deferred
tax tax Netbasls tax tax Net basis
assets llabllitles asseais liabllities
Placement with, and loans to banks 167 167 50 50

Loans and advances to customers
Foreclosed collateral
Provislons - Off-balance shest ltems

157,147 167,147
18,333 18,333
1,368 1,398

147,674 147,674
23,141 23,141
5,692 5,802

Impairment securities (1,435) {1,435) K
Total recognized deferred tax
assots / llabilities - 175610 175810 - 176757 176,757

Movement In temporary differences during the year are as follows:

In thousands of Denars
2019 2018
1 Recognised 3 1 Recognised 31
January Inincome December January InIncome December
Placement with, and loans to banks 50 117 167 45 5 50
Loans and advances to customers 147,674 9,473 157,147 168,644 (20,870) 147,874
Foreclosed collateral 23,141 (4,808) 18,333 29,022 {5.881) 23,141
Pravisions - Off-balance sheet itams 5,892 (4.494) 1,398 5,654 238 5,892
Impalrment securities - 1,435) {1,435) - - -
176.757 1,147) 175610  203.365 (26,608) 178,757

The temporary differences relate to different camrying amount of the above presented Items In accordance
with statutory requirements.
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STOPANSKA BANKA AD - Skopje
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2019

16.

CASH AND BALANCES WITH THE CENTRAL BANK

Cash on hand

Accounts and deposlts with NBRNM, excapt mandatory reserves in
foreign currency

Accounts and deposits with foreign banks

Accounts and deposits with domestic banks

Treasury bills which can be traded on the secondary market
Time deposlts up to thrae months

Other short-term highly liguid assets

Less: ECL allowance

included in Statemant of Cash Flows

Mandatory reserves In forelgn currency

Restricted deposits

In thousands of Denars

December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
1,434,400 1,434,007
6,513,180 4,935,642
2,426,277 1,860,580
1,465 585
4,889,320 4,957,841
3,164,795 3,012,288
330 322
(1,120) (1,210)
18,438,657 16,000,033
3,127,306 2,082,726
281,772 334,088
21847.735 192966827

Accounts and deposits with NBRNM, excopt mandatory reserves in forelgn currency in the amount of
Denar 4,835,642 thousand {2018: Denar 4,935,642 thousand) represent mandatory reserves In Denars.

These resarves are noh-interest baaring.

Treasury bllis which can be fraded on the secondary markst In the amount of Denar 4,899,320 thousand
(2018: Denar 4,857,841 thousand) represent bllls issued by the Central Bank with a maturity of 28 - 35
days. Interest rate In 2018 from 2.25% to 2.50% p.a. (2018: 3.25-2.50% p.a.). Treasury Bills are classlified

as FVOC] as at 31 December 2018.

Mandatory reserves In foreign currency represent non-interest-bearing mandatory deposit with NBRNM
amounting to Denar 2,862,726 thousand (2018: Denar 2,962,726 thousand) calcuiated as an average
amount of deposits In foreign currencies during the last calendar month.
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STOPANSKA BANKA AD - Skopje
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2019

17.

18.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT AND LOSS

Equlty securities issued by banks

In thousands of Denars
Dscember 31, December 31,

2018 2018
3.763 5618
3.783 5616

The Bank trades with the trading securities In order to gensrate profit from the short-term fluctuations In
thelr stock price. The Bank is not able to exart significant influence over the banks In which it holds equity
securities due to the ingignificant percentage it has in the ordinary share capltal In these entities.

SECURITIES MEASURED AT FVTOCI

Equity securities issued by other entities

The movement of Equity securities Is as follows:

Equlty securlties Issued by other entitles:

Balance at the beginning of the year
Gains / (losses) from changes in fair value
Balance at the end of the year

The movement In the ECL allowance is as follows:

Balance at the beginning of the year
Addition for the year (Note 11)
Foreign exchange effects

Other - reclassified to FVOCI

In thousands of Desnars
December
3, December 31,
2019 2018
814258 80.059
814256 80,059
In thousands of Denars
December 31, D“"“';:’
2019 2018
80,058 77,435
1,366 2,624
81,425 80,054
In thousands of Denars
December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
- 301 |1 35
- (301,136)
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STOPANSKA BANKA AD - Skopje
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2019

18. SECURITIES MEASURED AT AMORTIZED COST

in thousands of Danars
Decomber 31, Deacembar 31,
2019 2018
Debt securitios
Government bills 4,565,809 3,548,553
Government continued coupon bond 1,682,720 2,254,139
Eurobonds 2,382,218 -
8,610,745 5,802,692
Less: ECL 14.342) (12,808)
8.506.403 5.789.684
in thousands of Denars
December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
Balance at the baginning of the year 5,789,884 6,141,214
Additions within the period 7,267,978 5,734,197
Disposals (sales and redemptions) within the period (4,629,050) (6,084,870)
Amortization of premiums / discounts 169,456 10,369
Foraign exchange differences (331) 10
Impairment charge i1.634) 1938)
Balance at the end of the year 8,586,403 5,768,684

The movement In the ECL allowance s as follows:

In thousands of Denars

December 31, December 31,

2019 2018

Balance at the beginning of the year 12,808 -
Adoption of IFRS 9 - 11,872
Balance at the beginning of the year, adjusted for IFRS 8 Impact 12,608 11,872
Addition for the year (Note 11) §,373 8936
Release (Note 11) (3,839) -
Balance at the end of the year 14,342 12,808

The ECL mavement in the table above relates to Stage 1.

Debt securities Issued by the Government In the amount of Denar 8,588,403 thousand, net, Include the
amount of Denar 4,660,507 thousand, net (2018: Denar 3,545,241 thousand) relating to eligible bills
Issuad by the Ministry of Finance of the RNM which can be traded on the sacondary market with a maturity
of one year and fixed Interest rate from 0.50% p.a. to 0.80% p.a. (2018: from 0.30% p.a. to 1.20% p.a.).
As well as amount of Danar 1,678,053 thousand, net, (2018: Denar 2,244,643 thousand) which relate to
continued coupon govemment bonds issued by the state of RNM with maturity from March 2020 till
October 2024 and fixed Interest rate from 0.90% p.a. to 1.60% p.a.{2018; from 0.90% p.a. to 3.90% p.a.)
being repayable in annual coupons. Starting from this year Eurcbond Issued by the Ministry of Finance
of the RNM Is part of investment securities, In amount of Denar 2,356,843 thousand, net (2018: Danar
null) with maturity from December 2020 till January 2025 and fixed Interest rate from 2.75% p.a. to 5.63%
pa..
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STOPANSKA BANKA AD - Skopje
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2019

PLACEMENTS WITH, AND LOANS TO BANKS

In thousands of Denars

Year ended December 31, 2019 Year ended Decamber 31, 2018

Short-term Long-term Short-term Long-term
Loans to foreign banks 18,431 - 18,138 -
Other placements due from
foreign banks - 234,581 - 186,681
Interest receivable 34 - 1.770 -
18,465 234,561 18,808 186,681
Less: ECL allowance (B,6569) - 8,510} -
8.806 234,661 10.398 186,691
243, 367 197.089
The movement in the ECL allowance Is as follows:
In thousands of Deanars
December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
Balance at the beginning of the year 9,510 16,365
Charge for the year (Note 11) 458 1,040
Releese (Note 11) i309) (7,895}
Balance at the and of the year _ 9659 8510

Part of the loans to forelgn banks amounting to Denar 18,431 thousand (2018: Denar 18,138 thousand)
are restricted and represent accounts held with banks In the Republic of Serbia, which went into
bankrupicy in Jenuary 2002 (Note 28). The ECL movement above relates to Stage 1.

Other placement due from foreign banks relate to restricted accounts of Denar 234,561 thousand (2018:
Denar 186,691 thousand) which represent deposits held with United Overseas Bank Limited Singapore
and HSBC Bank PLC, London, Great Britain as a collateral for the transactions performed with VISA and .
MASTER payment cards. These funds are not avallable for the Bank's daily operations.
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STOPANSKA BANKA AD - Skopje
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2019

21.

LOANS TO CUSTOMERS
a) Analysis of loans by type of customer

In thousands of Denars

Year ended December 31, 2019 Year ended December 31, 2018

Short-ferm Long-term Shortterm Long-term
Nen-financial entities
princlpal amount 11,004,540 12,156,772 12,223,277 11,479,855
interest receivable 45,659 - 57,198 -
State
princlpal amount (227) 726 1,091 534
interest receivable 4 - 4 -
Not-for-profit crganizations
principal amount (226) 7,629 - 7.921
Interest recelvable 23 - 25 -
Houssholds
principal amount:
= housing loans 277,935 10,922,356 279,826 10,096,602
- consumer loans 2,376,551 27,407,794 2,468,765 31,450,828
- auto loans 48,929 33,990 53,271 43,997
- credit cards 330,203 5,825,042 264,554 1,729,983
= other loans 187,475 1,569,620 185,259 -
interest recelvable 125,982 - - -
Non-residents, except banks
principal amount 318 838 572 1,276
interest recelvable 4 - 5 -
Current maturity 11.255.892 {11,255,991) 10.796 996 (10,796,986)
257041682 46668777  26.330.844 44.014.07¢
Total gross loans 72,372,939 70,344,914
Provislon for Impairment {4,294, 722) 15,199.029
88.078.217 65,145 885

The ECL allowance presented represents total provision and relate to both, short-term and long-term

loans to customers.

The movement In the ECL allowance is as follows:

Balance at the beglnning of the year
Adoption of IFRS 8

Balance at the beginning of the year, adjusted for IFRS 9 impact

Charge for the year (Note 11)
Release (Note 11)
Recoveries

Write off

Balance at the end of the year

In thousands of Denars
December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
5,188,028 5,101,360
- 85,764
6,199,029 5,187,124
909,854 1,330,351
(828,478) {1,330,714)
342018 386,880
(1,327,699) {374,612}
4,204.722 5.199.029
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STOPANSKA BANKA AD - Skople
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2019

21. LOANS TO CUSTOMERS (Continued)
b) Analysls of loans by sectors

in thousands of Denars
December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
Agriculture and forestry 372,264 587,241
Mining and quarrying 256,457 173,806
Manufacturing 7,325,445 7,264,620
Electrcity, gas, steam and air conditioning supply 1,664,772 1,859,386
Water supply; sewerage, waste management and remediation activities 6,757 9,058
Construction 2,305,793 1,486,062
Wholesale and retail trade; repair of motor vehicles and motorcycles 5,481,088 5,599,190
Transportation and storage 814,444 854,570
Accommodation and food service activities 822,866 785,518
Information and communication 250,233 160,530
Financlal and insurance activities 58,809 98,434
Real estate activitles 305,226 581,159
Professional, sclentific and technlcal activities 450,488 377,016
Administrative and support service activities 566,846 615,788
Pubilc administration and defence; compulsory social security 16,321 2,862
Education - .
Human health and soclal work actlvities 402 422 65,435
Arts, entertalnment and recreatlon 4,568 39,740
Other service activites 27,991 28,557
Individuals 46.945 429 44 448 913
68.078 217 85.145.885
o} Analysis of loans by type of security
In thousands of Denars
December 31, Decembear 31,
2019 2018
Cash and cash equivalents or restricted accounts held in Bank 1,477,782 1,814,483
Government guarantees 754,586 922,425
Bank guarantees 608,802 843,721
Corporate guarantess 574,024 481,822
Property 28,365,482 27,818,142
Equipment and other movable assets 1,278,750 1,187,658
Other securities 3,180,487 3,584,073
Non-secured 31,810,284 28 482,881
68.078 217 65.145 885
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December 31, 2019

22 OTHER ASSETS
a) Non-current assets held for sale

Foreclosed collateral
Land

Bulldings

Other

Less: Allowance for Impalrment

In thousands of Denars

Decamber 31, December 31,
2019 20138

17,710 18,027
488,947 630,321
29,092 29,107
535,749 677.455

{328,778) (384,582)

208.971

282,893

The movemaent in the allowance for Impairment In non-current assets held for sale is as follows:

Balance at the beginning of the year
Charge for the year (Note 11)
Disposals

Balance at the end of the year

b) Other recelvables and prepald expenses

Trade recelvables from contracts with customers

Prepaid axpenses

Recelvables for commissioh and fees

Advances to suppliers

Short term settlements of operations with credit cards
Receivables upon payments on credit cards

Stock of material, plastic cards, coins and numismatic collection
Treasury shortage

Suspense account for pensions

Other recelvables

Less: ECL allowance

In thousands of Denars
December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
394,562 457,497
11,961 18,282
{77,745) (81,217
328,778 394 562

In thousands of Denars

December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
17,524 268,842
19,240 2,217
4517 4,262
4,181 2,435
28,003 30,904
169,421 137,208
37,034 28,746
3,742 3,668
1,102,796 -
26 342 30.502
1,412,800 608,785
{84,237) 1569,272)
1.348.563 448513

Suspense accounts In amount of 1.102.796 thousand MKD refers to pansion for December 2019
prepaid from bank's funds, offset by the Pension and disabfiity Insurance fund of North Macedonla on

3 of January 2020,
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STOPANSKA BANKA AD - Skopje
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December 31, 2019

22, OTHER ASSETS (Continued)
b) Other recelvables and prepald expenses
The movement in the ECL allowance in other recelvables and prepald expenses is as follows:
in thousands of Denars
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
12 - month Credit Total
ECL Listime ECL impalred
December 31,2019
Balance at beginning of period {12) (2.204) (57.058) (69.272)
Transfor from Stage 1 to Stage 2 - - - -
Transfer from Stage 1 o Stage 3 - - - -
Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 1 (19) 19 . -
Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 3 - 1.827 (1.827) -
Transfer from Stage 3 to Stage 2 - (1.8486) 1.846 -
New flnanclal assets - - -
Write-cffs - - 1.110 1.110
Other movements including repayments 27 657 {6.758) {(6.075)
Ending balance 14} {1.547) ‘62.686! S84.237z
In thousands of Denars
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
12 - month Credit Total
ECL Lifetime ECL |/ haired
December 31,2018
Balance at beginning of period (88) (878) {54 125) {55,169)
Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 2 - - - -
Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 3 - - - -
Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 1 - - - -
Transfer from Stage 2 o Stage 3 . 538 (538) .
Transfer from Stage 3 to Stage 2 - (1.591) 1,591 -
New financlal assets - - - -
Write-offs - - - -
Other movemenis Including repayments 76 (176) (3,983) (4,083)
Ending balance 12 12.204) SSTIOSGI ‘59@72!
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2019

23. INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Cost

Balance at January 1, 2018

Additions

Transfer from assets acquired through foreclosure procedure
Disposals

Balance at December 31, 2018

Balance at January 1, 2019
Additions

Transfer to Proparty and equipment
Disposals

Balance at Decomber 31, 2018

Accumulated depreclation
Balance at January 1, 2018
Transfer fo Property and equipment
Charge for the year

Disposals

Balance at December 31, 2018

Balance at January 1, 2018
Transfer to Property and equipment
Charge for the year

Disposals

Balance at December 31, 2019

impalirment

Balance at January 1, 2018
Charge for the year (Note 11)
Balance at December 31, 2018

Balance at January 1, 2019
Charga for the year (Note 11)
Balance at December 31, 2019

Carrying amount
Balance at December 31, 2018

Balance at December 31, 2019

In thousands
of Denars
166,289
116
(24,487)
27,504
114 414

114,414

114.414

2,649
(10,283)
1,972
13,677

{18,330)
(19,339)
1,105

(18,234)

101,367

3,997
105 364
105,364
105,364

28 389
27 284

As of December 31, 2019, the fair value of the investment property coresponds to the carrying amount

presented in these financlal statemsents.
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24, INTANGIBLE ASSETS

In thousands of Denars
Leasehold Other
Software  Improvements intangibles Total

Cost
Balance at January 1, 2018 738,181 150,735 8,758 897,674
Additions 31,621 21,188 - 53,008
Disposals - {4,590} - {4,990)
Balance at Decembar 31, 2018 770,002 168,933 8.758 845.603
Balance at January 1, 2019 770,002 166,933 8,758 945,693
Additlons 62,986 9,275 - 72,271
Disposals - {2,840) - {2,840)
Balance at December 31, 2019 832098 173.368 8,758 1.016.124
Accumulated amortization
Balance at January 1, 2018 842,275 113,878 - 756,163
Charge for the year 35,400 13,259 - 48,659
Disposal - {4,283) - (4,283)
Balance at Decamber 31, 2018 877675 122 854 - 800,529
Balance at January 1, 2019 677,675 122,854 - 800,528
Charge for the year 38,617 16,283 - 54,910
Dispcsai - {2,840} - (2,840)
Balance at December 31, 2019 716292 136,307 - 852 599
Carrying amount
Balance at December 31, 2018 92,327 44 078 6758 145184
Balance at December 31, 2019 118,708 37,081 8,768 182,525
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25, PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
In thousands of Denars
RoU assets
Fumiure and Construction Bulkdings

Bufidings  _ equipment In progress  and vehicles Total

Cost

Balance st January 1, 2018 1,246,570 892,321 1,964 - 2,240,865
Additions 40,662 26,251 4,111 - 71,024
Transfer {Note 24) 24,487 - . - 24,487
Disposals (18,038 {4,514 - - {22,5563)
Balance at December 31, 2018 1,293,680 1,014,058 8,075 - 2,313,813
Balance at January 1, 2019 1,203,680 1,014,058 6,076 - 2,313,813
First time adoption IFRS 18 110,526 110,526
Addltions 24,259 55,125 2,265 33,5614 115,163
Transfer (Note 23) - - - - -
Disposals 168,025) (67,914) - - 1126,938)
Balance at December 31, 2018 1,258,914 1,001,269 8,340 144,040 2,412,563
Accumulsted depraciation

Balance at January 1, 2018 556,011 840,408 - - 1,308,419
Transfer (Note 23) 10,283 - - . 10,283
Charge for the year 31,162 56,820 - 87,082
Disposals {8.230) (4,404 - : 113,724
Balance at December 31, 2018 588,226 802,734 - - 1,480,960
Balance at January 1, 2019 588,226 802,734 - - 1,480,860
Transfor (Note 23) - . . . .
Charge for the year 31,481 49,748 - 42,657 123,888
Disposals (30,588) (67,651) - - {88,140)
Balance at December 31, 2019 689,118 874,831 - 42,657 1,508,706
Impalrment

Balance at January 1, 2018 - - - - -
Charge for the year (Note 11) 3,820 - - - 3,829
Balance at December 31, 2018 3,929 - - - 3,929
Balance at Januaty 1, 2018 3,028 - - - 3,829
Charga for the year (Note 11) 208 - 298
Balance at December 31, 2019 4,227 - - s 4,227
Carrylng amount

Balance at Decembsr 31, 2018 701.5_2 121|324 6,075 - 828|924
Balance at December 31, 2019 866,669 - 126,338 8.340I = 101.383 801 630

The Bank's buildings as of Dacember 31, 2019 Include property with a net carrylng amount of Danar
2,969 thousand (2018: Denar 3,452 thousand), for which the Bank does not possess appropriate
ownership tHle deeds due to iIncomplete cadastral records.

As of December 31, 2019 and 2018 the Bank's property and equipment are free of any pledges and
morigages.
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DEPOSITS FROM BANKS
Decamber 31, 2018
Up to one
__ yoar
Current accounts
domestic banks 10,862
forelgn banks 8.866
19,728
Time deposits
foreign banks 219,807
219,807
Restricted deposits
forelgn banks 18.620
18,620
Interest payable on deposits
forelgn banks 81
81

Total deposits from banks 258,236

In thousands of Denars
December 31, 2018
Up to one Over one

year year

21,820 -
11,876 =
33,688 -

107.378 -
107,379 -

18,328 .
18,328 .

101 -
101 -

150504

The restricted deposits held with foreign banks amounting to Denar 18,620 thousand (2018: Denar 18,328
thousand) represent deposits from banks in the Republic of Serbia which went into bankruptcy in January

2002 (Note 20).
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27. DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS

Non-financial entities
Current accounts
Sight deposits
Time deposits
Restricted deposits
Other deposits
Interest payable on deposits

State
Current accounts
Time dsposits
Restricted deposits
Interest payable on deposits

Not-for-profit organizations
Current accounts
Sight daposits
Time deposlis
Restricted deposits
Interast payable on deposits

Financial Institutions, except
banks

Current accounts

Sight deposits

Time daposits

Restricted deposits

Interest payable on deposits

Houaeholds
Current accounts
Sight deposits
Time deposiis
Restrictad deposlts
interest payable on deposis

Non-resldents, except banks
Current accounts

Sight deposiis

Time deposlts

Restricied deposits

Interest payable on deposits

Current maturity

Total deposlts from customers

In thousands of Denars
December 31, 2018 December 31. 2018
Up to one Over one Up to one Over one
year year y=ar year

13,980,721 - 9,946,944 -
138,203 - 215,535 -
985,198 1,037,653 1,425,692 1,073,983
524,576 472,683 298,481 603,598
10,780 - 12,347 -
21110 - 27,047 -
16,658,598 1,510,238 11,924,046 1,677,681
48,069 - 71,089 -
M 650 158 850
12 - 3 -
48,115 650 71,250 650
519,236 504,053 -
123,412 34,180 165,497 21,480
3,967 2,213 7.003 -
444 - 674 -
847,059 36,393 667,227 21,480
49,450 - 58,877 -
105,878 1,360,242 71,050 1,659,490
10,118 32,373 179 31,405
24 612 - 27.308 -
180,056 1,392,615 158,214 1,800,805
25,728,005 - 21,718,430 -
28,073 - 14,329 -
16,609,210 17,723,654 17,570,504 16,903,275
1,645,481 776,055 1,466,708 1,119,531
79.913 - 73.778 -
44 089,882 18,496,709 40,843,749 18,022,806
454,538 - 567,368 -
864 - 1,308 -
127,446 163,154 148,688 171,566
37,964 20 35,116 19
445 - 410 -
621,255 163,174 752,891 171,586

11,348.177 11,348,177 11,283 154 (11,283,154)
72.602,940 10.254.600 65,700.531 10.301,843

82857540 76,002 374
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28, LOANS PAYABLE
In thousands of Denars

December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018
Up to one Over one Up to one Over one
year year _ year year
Domestic sources:
Agency for assets management
- long-term lean in amount of
Denar 148,398 thousand (2018;
Denar 149,398 thousand) Is
payable in March 2020 on a
once off basls. Related fees for
these lcans are 1.5% p.a.
annually. 149,398 - 1,182 149,398
MBPR
- Matures In 2024 and Interest
rate is equal to 1.0% p.a.
annually (2018: 1% p.a.) 138 64.807 311 145,554
149,537 64,807 1,603 204,952
Current maturity of long-term
loans 31.089 (31,089) 81.708 (81,708}
180 626 33.718 83211 213.244
Total loans payable 214,344 A0S

a) FINANCIAL LIABILITIES RECONCILIATION

The table below sets out an analysls of our debt and the mavements in our debt for each of the periods
presented. The debt items are those that are reported as financing in the statement of cash flows:

In thousands of Denars

December 31, December 31,

2019 2018
Balance at the beginning of the year 296 455 409 410
Cash flows {80,804) (113,732)
Foreign exchange adjustments 57 19
Other non-cash mavements (1,364} 758
Balance at the end of the year 214 344 296,455
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29, OTHER LIABILITIES

in thousands of Denars
December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
Trade payables 16,284 38,893
Recelved advances - -
Fee and commissions liabilities 137 77
Accrued expenses 40,888 83,535
Deferred income from previous year 125,873 116,195
Other
Preferred cumulative shares 90,978 90,978
Liabllitfes for dividend on preferred shares 2,884 2,067
Disputed VISA cards transactions 4,581 1,839
Unallocated inflows upon daposits and other inflows 583,763 483,227
Obligations to merchants for outstanding payments on credit cards 20,432 22,673
Overpald fees of credit cards 29,352 25,629
Commitments for closing current aceounts - bankruptey 12,453 12,484
Obligations for setlement with VISA 2,053 702
Lease llabllity 102,563 -
Premature repayment of loans and cther liabilities 89 451 61,843
1121,772 930,122

The Bank has Issued 227,444 non-redeemable cumulative preference shares with a nominal value of
Denar 400.

The preference shares give preferential rights for dividends and do not have voting rights and particlpation
in equity In the event of a liquidation of the Bank.

As of Decernber 31, 2019, the Bank allocated an amount of Denar 810 thousand as a dividend to the
holders of these shares for the second half of 2019 (2018: Denar 2,047 thousand).

In December 2018, based on a Declslon of the Shareholders Assembly, the Bank made advance payment
of dividend fo the holders of prefarence shares in the total amount of MKD 1,137 thousand for the first
haif of 20189.

The movement in the lease llabllity expenses is as follows

In thousands of

Denars

Balance at January 1, 2019 110,526
Additlons 33,514
Repayments 41.487)
Balance at Decembar 31, 2019 102,553
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PROVISIONS

Balance at January 1, 2018
Adoption of IFRS%

Baiance at January 1, 2018
restated

Additions

Used

Release

Balance at December 31, 2018

Balance at January 1, 2019
Additions

Used

Release

Balance at December 31, 2019

In thousands of Denars
Off-balance Empiloyees
shest Hems Liigation benefits Total
25,255 18,704 31,547 75,606
29,353 - - 29,353
54,608 18,704 31,547 104,859
1,103 488 3,301 4 870
- {1,289) {2686) {1,555)
{356,132) {3,054) (538} [38.724)
20,579 14 827 34,044 69,450
In thousands of Denars
Off-balance Employees
sheet itoams Litigation benefits Total
20,578 14,827 34,044 69,450
928 475 3428 4,831
- {945) {74) (1,019)
(1,521) {4,326) (1,478) {7,325)
19,886 10.031 35920 685,937

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash

outflows.

The principal actuarial assumptions used were as follows:

Interest rate
Average salary Increase
Inflation rate

Mortallty rate;

2019 2018
3.10% 3.20%
4.00% 4.00%
2.00% 2.00%

By the study of mortallty rates in the past years, we have established the representation of the expected
rete of mortality in the country. Wa used a mortelity tabie which Is a reasonable approximation of long-

term mortality rate In the couniry.
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3.

EQuITY

&) Share capltal

The share capltal of the Bank as of December 31, 2019 and 2018 consists of 17,480,180 fully paid up
ordinary shares with a nominei value of Denar 201.1. The holders of ordinary shares are entltied fo receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitied to one vote per share at the Bank's Genera!
Assembly meetings, as well as the right ic participate equally In the event of the liquidation of the Bank.

The structure of shareholders exceeding 5% of the issued voting capltal as of December 31, 2019 and
2018 officially announced and accepted by the Central Securities Deposttory of the RNM is as follows:

December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018
% of In thousands % of In thousands
participstion  of Denars participation _ of Denars
Natlenel Bank of Greece 984.84% 3,323,004 £4.64% 3,323,094
Othars 5.36% 188,148 5.36% 188,148
100% 3.511.242 100% 3.611,242

b) Revaluation reserves

Revaluation reserves include unrealized gains and losses arising from changes in the falr value of
available-for-aele investments.

Components of other comprehensive Income

In thousanda of Denars
December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
Reaerves-Other comprehensive Income-kems that will be
reclassified to P&L
Revaluation reserve - FVTOCI Debt securities (395) 8,475
Reserves-Other comprehensive Income-items that will not be
reclassified to P&L
Galns less iosses on investments in equity securities at fair value
through other comprehensive income 1,366 2,624
Service & interest income/(cost) related to defined benefits
obligation 380 (3,325)
Other comprahensive income 1,351 7,774
Less: Income tax relating to components of other comprahensive
Income - -
Other comprehensive Income for the year, net of tax 1.351 7,774
c) Statutory reserve

In accordance with the local regulations, the Bank Is required to set aside 5 percent of its net profit for the
previous year in a statutory reserve until the level of the reserve reaches 1/10 of the court-registered
share capital. Untll the minimum required level e reached, the statutory reserve could be ussd only for
loss recovery. When the statutory reserve exceeds the minimum level, after recovery of all losses, i can
be used for distribution of dividends, based on a decislon of the Shareholder's Assembly, but only If, for
the current year, it has not reached the minimum for distribution as prescribad by the Law on Trade
Companles or by the Bank's Statute.

d) Speclal fund

Special fund represents a fund set up based on the internal Bank's poilcy for various purposes broadly
classified as restrictive.
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a2,

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Eamnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to shareholders by the

weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.
The following reflects the income and share data In the earnings per share computations:

Net profit attributable to shareholders for basic and diluted earnings

per share (In thousands of Denars)

Weighted average number of shares for basic and diluted eamings

per share

Basic earnings per share (in Denars)
Diluted eamings per share (In Denars)

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
2,315,763 2,408,771
17,460,180 17,460,180
132.6 143.1
132.6 143.1

Related partles include major sharsholders, affiliates and jointly controlled entities, control/management
with the Bank, or whose activities the Bank has an ability to control. Key management personnel Include
members of Management and Supervisory Board. All transactions with related partles arise in the normal
course of business and thelr value Is nat materlally different from the terms and condltions that would

pravail in ams-length transactlons.

The significant related party balances and transactions are presented as follows:

Statement of flnancial position

December 31, 2019
Assets

Current accounts
Loans

Other assats

Liablilitles
Deposits
Other liabiliies

December 31, 2018
Assats

Current accounts
Loans

Other assets

Liabllitles
Deposits
Other liabilitles

In thousands of Denars
Koy
Parent management Other related
company personnel parties Total

3,604 - - 3,684

- 1,398 2,855 4,053

3,684 1,398 2655 7.747

3 63,552 220,237 283,792

43,800 1 - 43,801
43,803 63,663 220,237 327,583
1,108 - - 1,108

- 1,485 2,922 4,407

- 208 37 245

1,106 1,693 2959 5.758

3 55,314 107,939 163,258

43,089 446 - 43 535
43082 55,760 107,939 208,791
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continuad)
Statement of comprehensive Income

In thousands of Denars
Key
Parent management Other related

company personnel partles Total
December 31, 2019
Income
Interest Income 1 70 176 247
Fee and commission income - 18 4 22
Other income - 4 1 5

1 92 181 274
Expenses
Interest expeanse : 762 3,143 3,806
Fee and commission expense 108 - . 108
Other expenses 111974 23 866 - __ 135828
112,082 24,8617 3,143 139,842
December 31, 2018
Income
Interest income - 79 175 254
Fes and commission income - 48 2 48
Other income - 24 - 24
- 149 177 326
Expenses
Interest expense 7 766 864 1,637
Other expenses 99,391 33,388 - 166,490
99,388 34,166 884 167.127

National Bank of Greece, Athens represents tha parent and the ulimate parent company of the Bank,
Other related party transactions relate mestly to NBG Calro branch, fellow subsidiaries of the NBG Group,
entity under common control and related parties to key management personnel.

The total compensation and other transactions with key management personnel as follows;
In thousands of Denars

December 31, December 31,
2019 2018

Short-term compensation and benefits 23,843 33,377

23,302 33.377

The Bank entered Into banking transactions with key managemant personnel In the normal course of
business.

a1
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34, COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

a) Off-balance sheest [tems

In thousands of Denars
December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
Payment guarantees:
In Denars 1,174,569 801,423
In foreign currency 182,735 233,097
in Denars with foreign currency clause 18,837 23,762
Performanca guarantees:
In Denars 396,086 390,029
in foreign currency 13,588 73,131
in Denars with forelgn currency clause 797,873 602,688
Letters of credit In foreign currency 105,510 79,137
Cash covered letter of credit 29,265 5,852
Cash covered letter of guarantees 249,859 272,518
Unused current account overdrafts 5,400,738 6,015,596
Credit cards commitments 5,639,913 5,771,824
Other 1.551 1.482
14,010,624 14,270,540
Less: provision for off-balance sheet items {Nots 30) (19,988 {20,579)
13,890 638 14,249 981
b) Managed funds

The Bank administrates assets on a fee basis on behalf of customers. Such managed funds are not
Bank's assets and are not recognized In the statement of financlal position.
In thousands of Denars

_ Decembsar 31, 2019 December 31, 2018
Assets Liabllities Net Asssis Liabllitles Net

L.oans In Denars 266,075 266,023 52 275,537 275,378 159
Loans in foreign

currengy 135,086 135,086 - 300,655 300,855 -
Other receivables

in Denars 1,142674 1,142,674 - 1021718 1,021,727 (8)
Other recelvables

in foreign currency 402,897 402 897 - 460,269 460,420 {151)
Custodian accounts

{Note 30) 44 168 44168 - 40.158 40.168 -

1990800 1,890,848 __52 2098338 _ 2086.338 -

The Bank is not exposed to any credlt risk in respect of the above placements, as it does not guarantee
placements.

c) Litigations

The Bank s involved in lagal proceedings from Its dally operations. As of Dacember 31, 2019 the pravislon
for legal proceedings filed against the Bank amounted to Denar 10,031 thousand {2018: Denar 14,827
thousand). The Bank’s management beileves that the final outcome of the filed legail proceedings will be
favorable, and that no material losses will result from the settiement of the aforementionad litigations.
During 2019, the Bank has allocated additional provisions for impalmment losses upon litigation In the
amount of Denar 476 thousand (2018: Denar 4686 thousand),
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34.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Continuad)
d) Lease commitments

The Bank as lessor

Operating leases relate to the investment property owned by the Bank, which comprises a number of
commerclal real estats leased to third partles. All operating lease contracts contaln market review clause
in the event that the lesses exercise Its option to renew. The expiration of the lease period range up fo
one year. Rental Income eamed by the Bank from Its Investment property, all of which Is leased out under
operating leases, amounting to Denar 1,874 thousand (2018: Denar 2,427 thousand).

The Benk as lessee

The Bank applied IFRS 16 solely to contracts that wers previously identifled as leases based on IAS 17
and IFRIC 4 presented as Banks's Right of Use Assets and Lease llability. The lease liabliitles were
discounted at the Bank's incremental borrowing rate as of 1 January 2019,

The Bank has elected to take a recognition exemption for short-term leases and leases of low-value
items, for which lease payments are recognized as opsrating expenses on a siraight-line basis aver the
lease term,

TAXATION RISK

The tax authorities may at any time inspect the books and recards within 5 years subsequent to the
reported tax year, and may Impose additional tax assessments and penalties. The Bank's management
Is not aware of any additional circumstances, which may give rise to a potential material lability in this

respect.
TRANSITION TO IFRS 16 LEASES AS OF 1 JANUARY 2019

The adoption of IFRS 16 on 1 January 2019, Increased the Banks's assets and {labllity by Denar
110,526 thousand.

The table below presents reconciliation of the operating lease commitments for the Bank, as of 31
December 2018 to the recognized lease liabllities as of 1 January 2019.

In thousands of Denars
Cperating lease commitments as of 31,12.2018 113,609
Rellef optlon for shori-term lease and low value assets 18
Gross |lease labilities 113,717
Discounting (3,191)
Lease liabllities 01.01.2018 110.626
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ar.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Late in 2019, news first emerged from China about the COVID-18 {Coronavirus). The sltuation at year-
end was that a limited number of cases of an unknown virus had been reported to the World Heaith
Organization. In the first months of 2020, the virus had spreed globally, and its negative impact has gained
momentum. Management considers this cutbreak to be & non-adjusting post balance sheet event, While
this Is, stlll an evolving situation at the time of [ssuing these financial statements, to date there has been
no discernible impact on the Bank's regular business operations; however, the future effects cannct be
predicted. As the situation Is still developing, management considers It Is hadequate to provide
quantitative estimation of potential Impact of this outbreak on the Bank.

Depending how the COVID crisis will develop, it ie certaln that the banking sector will face downturn,
revenue reduction, decreased lending activities and possible deteriaration of the credit quality. Since the
crisis occurred just before the year-end and the first case in the Republic of N. Macedonla appeared at
the end of February 2020, the Bank did not consider potential economic Impact due to limited nformation.
The crisls starled penetrating In the local economy during March 2020, when different authorities
undertook many health and economic measures.

The ECL at 31 December 2019 was estimated based on the range of forecast economic condition as at
that date. The Impact on GDP and other key Indicators will be consldered when determining the severity
and lIikelihood of downside economic scenarios that would be used to estimate ECL under IFRS 9 in 2020,
upon assessment of the duration of the disruption caused by the virus.

Measures undertaken by the NBRNM

The NBERNM adopted on 20.03.2020 amendments in the prudentlal regulation with temporal character,
related to non-performing exposures and forbsarance classification standards. In particular, the
amendments in the regulation with validity up to 30.09.2020 are allowing the banks for all clients with
credit exposures {companies and Individuals) that were with regular status as of 28,02,2020 to apply the
following standards:

The threshold of 80 dpd for assigning the non performing status is increased to 150 dpd for all credit
clients (companies and indlviduals) classified as regular at the end of Fabruary, 2020 as wall as for all
new exposures, classified In A and B categories in the period untll 30.09.2020

Any changes in the contractual terms (repayment schedule Including granting of grace period, change of
pricing etc.) for all clients (companles and indlviduals), regular at the end of February 2020, shali not have
a treatment of forbearance and those exposures shall not have a status of forbormne axposures, In this
regard, the new regulation Is recognizing that the act of addressing the problems of the clients by banks
through all necessary adjustments in the credit terms is not due to the Individua! financial difficulties of the
clients but due to the extraordinary clrcumstances imposed by the crisis

The banks have a right to do up to two sets of changes of credit terms per client untll September 2020,
without being treated as a forbearance, by that avolding reclassification of the cllents, and new provisions.
The changes In the contractual terms to all alreacly restructured exposures that have a status of Forborne
Performing Exposures i.e. the amendment of credit terms and conditione for those cllents shall not result
In thelr reclass!fication to Forborne Non-Performing Exposures

With the amendments, the regulator is releasing the banks from obligation to do the financlal analysls
within the credii approval process for the changes of credit terms and condltions for Individuals. For
companies, the regulation prescribes that banks shall do only minimum financlal analysis meaaning the
credit approvai process to be simplest and quickest as much as possible.

NBRNM re-enacts the non-standard measure In the reserve account requiremants which enabies
reduction of the llability for the reserve account requirement in MKD for newly approved and restructured
loans epproved to companles in activities that according to the information from the Government of the
Republic of North Macedonia will be most affected by the spreed of COVID-19.
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38.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD (continued)
Measures undertaken by Government

Government announced that is negotiating a EUR 600m loan, an amount that aguals to 5.5% of the
country GDP, from International Monetary Fund, World Bank and foreign commercial banks In order to
support the budget and the economy.

Government has announcad stopping all enforcement activities untll end of Juna, obliging the banks to
stop the collection activities and to de-block the accounts of all debtors.

In addition, no bankruptcy process can start ageinst any company for a period unti! expiretion of 3 months
after the cease of the state of emergency in the country.

Government has decreased maximum Interest rate that can be applied to the debtors by 4% during the
period of State of emergency. For the Individuals this will be applled only for new loan contracts during
the period of State of emergency

Approximately 235 euro monthly (for April and May) is provided to each employee of the companies
affected by the crisis. Altematively, companies can choose the option the State to subsidize 50% of the
soclal contributlons. Financlal support will be provided to all cltizens that will lose their Jobs due to the
crisis and In the same time Government has freeze the prices of the basic food products and medical
supplies. In addltion to 5.7 milllon, the Development Bank of North Macedeonla announced additional eur8
milllon interest-free loans for micro, small and medium enterprises.

The Development Bank of the Republic of North Macedonia in cooperation with the European Investment
Bank has announcad addltional credit lina in amount of EUR 50 million for small and medium entarprises
in order to overcome the problems arising from the new situation with the emergence of the COVID-19
virus,

Banking Association

In mutual coordination gulded by NBRNM, all banks, Including ali large banke, and In connection with
changed regulation related to non-performing exposures and forbearance classlfication, have reached an
agreement, through thelr offers to postpone the repayment of credit obligetions for up to 6 months for
individual persons across the board, no later than 30.08.2020,

With those actions, members of the Banking Assoclation in coordination with the NBRNM once agaln are
confirming thelr social responsibility in meeting the needs of all indlviduals and companies, which have
faced or in the future could face major problems due to the COVID-18 virus.

Euture prospects

Itis difficult at this stage to estimate the effect of the crisis on the bank's financials; however, it is possible
and depending on the duration of the distuption, the economy to slow down, affecting the bank’s business
operations respectively. Revenues possible will be affected malnly due to the lower lending activities and
transaction voiumes, while the liquidity position of the Bank is expected to remaln stable and sufficlent to
cover unpredictable effects. Whilst the management is not able o quantify the Impact of the situation, It
Is reasonable to assume that It will be negative.

Management will continue to monltor the potential Impact and will take all steps possible to mitigate any
effects depending on the future developments of the crisis.

No other material events subsequent to the date of the statement of financlal position have occurred which
require disclosure in the financlal statements.
EXCHANGE RATES

Official exchange rates used In the translation of the balance sheet items denominated in foreign
currencles were as follows:

In Denars

2019 2018

1USD 549518 53.6887
1EUR 61.4856 61.4850
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